
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 261885 or e-mail rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Planning Committee 
 

 

Date: Wednesday 30 January 2013 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 261885 
Email: rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Planning 
Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor PGH Cutter 
Vice-Chairman Councillor BA Durkin 
  

Councillor PA Andrews  
Councillor AN Bridges  
Councillor PJ Edwards  
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor J Hardwick  
Councillor JW Hope MBE  
Councillor MAF Hubbard  
Councillor RC Hunt  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor JG Lester  
Councillor RI Matthews  
Councillor FM Norman  
Councillor AJW Powers  
Councillor GR Swinford  
Councillor PJ Watts  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  30 JANUARY 2013 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 20  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2013.  
   
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS     
   
 To receive any announcements from the Chairman.  
   
6. APPEALS   21 - 24  
   
 To be noted.  
   
7. N123067/F - LAND AT THE COACH HOUSE, OLD CHURCH ROAD, 

COLWALL, MALVERN   
25 - 42  

   
 Erection of two storey dwellinghouse.  
   
8. S122604/O - LAND REAR OF WHITE HOUSE DRIVE, KINGSTONE, 

HEREFORD   
43 - 60  

   
 Outline application for 35 unit housing scheme with associated access.  
   
9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING     
   
 Date of next site inspection: 19 February 2013 

 
Date of next meeting:  20 February 2013 

 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the 
circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated 
the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



�������������	
���
�
	

�������� 	
� ��
� �

����� 	
� ��������� �	�����

� �
��� ��� ��
�
�	������ �����
��� ��	������	��� ���  �
	�� !	����  
�

	��� 	��
"
��
#��$�%�&�����$�'()�����)(*((����
� �

��
#
��+� �	������	���, �����
��-��������.�
�	������	���/�0������-1��
���������.�

� � �
� �	������	�#+��/�/���
2#��/�������
#���&���2���#��0"�,�

�	2��3��,�����
��

&� ���2�����&"� 	4
�������/5� ��������!�� �����&/� $�
��5���	������
/&"��	2
�#��!���

�
��,!��2��
	��������&�"���#�

�
� �
������
�����
+	 �	������	�#�/��/����#	���!�� �����	����������������63��4
	
� �
))7*� /�898,����58!�/���������

	
���������	����	��������	����	
���������	���� 	!	"����	
��#	"$	
��%��	&��	��	'&%%(��� 	
	

))%*� �/��0�������������-�5�/�:.���
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	�&�&��&�(	) * +,	��	%(�	
������-�	
���%�%�%���#	
����������	"�	�.��	&��	
�	!�����	&%%�����	%(�	���%���	&�	��/�%�%�%�	���/���	���	
����������	"$	
��%��	&��	��	
'&%%(��� 	
	

)'(*� 0��9/!/��8���85�����!������
	
0 	�*+*,102�	3	
�44
�	!��$�4�
�5	���'#	!�4���4�6#	����3��365�#	��7	8�� 	

���������	�6	$������#	���3!�����&�.#	4(�	
���������	9����	%(�	&�����&�% 	
	
0 	�*+*,102�	3	
�44
�	!��$�4�
�5	���'#	!�4���4�6#	����3��365�#	��7	8�� 	

���������	"	�&�����9#	���3!�����&�.#	4(�	
���������	9����	%(�	&�����&�% 	
	
*: 	�*++)7;2�	3	
��<����

#	6�
����	����#	����3��365�#	�������������#	
��7	1!= 	

���������	"�	�.��#	���3!�����&�.#	4(�	
���������	�����	��&�/. 	
	
*: 	�*++)7;2�	3	
��<����

#	6�
����	����#	����3��365�#	�������������#	
��7	1!= 	

���������	!$�	
�%%��#	�������&/��	!�����&�.#	4(�	
���������	��	&	%���%��	��	%(�	����(/������	
������%>	��	%(�	&������.	�����	��	%(�	����(/������	�% 	"����(?�	!���&�.	��(���>	&��	&	
%���%��	��	%(�	
���9�%	
��/	��	�(��(	%(�	&�����&�%	��	�������� 	
	
** 	�*++0+)2��	3	7	@	*:	��A���	��A#	����3��365�#	�������������#	��7	1�! 	

���������	!$�	
�%%��#	���3�������&/��	!�����&�.#	4(�	&�����&�%	��	%(�	
���������?�	��� 	
	

)')*� ����������
	
�	���/��	��	%(�	
����%%��	��%��	%(&%	%(�	�&�&��&�(	��	%(�	����%�%�%���	��������	%�	��	����%�	
���/��	**,	�&�	��������% 	�%	�&�	��%��	%(&%	%(��	�&�	���	%�	&	�����%	&�������%	%�	%(�	
����%�%�%��� 	4(�	�&��	���/��	&���	����(%	��&�����&%���	&�	%�	�(�%(��	%(�	
�&���	��	%(�	

������	(&�	����&���	&�	��%����%	��	������%	��	����%�	���/��	**, 	4(�	������&%��	��������	
�������	���������	%(&%	��	����&�&%���	��	��%����%	(&�	/���	�&�� 	
�

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



	

!��891�0+� �������
������
#�	
���
��

����#��
���	��;��	<
��
��'()'�����)%�
0
�
��
��'()'��
��44�	<
���#��	��
����
�	��#�����#���
���$���
�
��������*	

	
)''*� � /�!�/�=��/��8������������

	
4(�	
(&���&�	&������	%(�	
����%%��	%(&%	����&�	4(��&�#	&	������	!�&�����	�������	
��%(��	%(�	!�&�����	���&�%���%#	�&�	���	%�	��%���	�(��%�. 	��	&����	%(&%	'�	4(��&�	(&�	
/���	��%(	���������(���	
���%.	
������	�����	�%�	�����%���	��	*77;	&��	(&�	/���	
�����.��	��	���&�	���������%	���	&	%�%&�	��	),	.�&�� 	4(�	
����%%��	���(��	(��	&	
(&��.	��%������%	&��	%(&�9��	(��	���	%(�	(���	&��	&�����	(�	(&�	�����	%(��	����	%(�	
.�&�� 	
	
4(�	
(&���&�	&���	&������	%(�	
����%%��	%(&%	&�	&���&�	��	������%	��	*+0	(�����	&%	
!��%(����	�&��#	����.&��	(&�	�����%�.	/���	��������� 	
	

)'�*� /���/9����
	
4(�	!�&�����	
����%%��	��%��	%(�	�����% 	
	

)'>*� �)')��;?��6�9���9�����,�� 9�:�5/!�������!��8"��!8��68�6":��� !%�@�����
	
4(�	!������&�	!�&�����	�������	�&��	&	������%&%���	��	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���&%��	2	
&���%���&�	��������%&%����	��������	���������	%(�	��/���&%���	��	%(�	&����&	����	
��������	��	%(�	���&%�	�(��% 	�(�	����	'��/���-	&%%��%���	%�	&�	�����	��	%(�	���&%�	
�(��%	�����	��/	(�&����	B�&�&	8 *1-	&��	&������	%(&%	%(�	������	���%����	�(����	�����	
%�	&������%�	��	%�	+::1	&��	��%	&������%�	�����	+::1 	
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	%(�	���%���&	���	��/���	���&9���#	'�	
.���#	��������%���	&	���/��	��	
%(�	���&�	�������%�#	���9�	��	�/C��%���	%�	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	'�	6����&��#	%(�	&�����&�%-�	
&���%#	���9�	��	������% 	'�	�&���#	
(&���&�	��	���%�&��#	�&�����(&�	&��	����%���	
$����	!&���(	
������	&���	&��������	%(�	
����%%��>	(�	�&����	����	��������	��	
������%	��	%(�	&�����&%���	/�%	�&�	/��&��.	��	������%	��	�% 	
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	�&�&��&�(	) ; + +	��	%(�	
������-�	
���%�%�%���#	
���������	��	
�&���%��#	���	��	%(�	���&�	�&��	���/���#	������%��	��	&	���/��	��	������#	���������D	
	

•	 4(�	���&�	�������%�	(&�	�&����	&	���/��	��	��������	��	������%	��	%(�	&�����&%���#	
%(���	��������D�

E	 4(�	&����&�.	��	%(�	�����%	(&�	/���	F���%����� �
E	 4(�	&�����&%���	�(����	/�	�������	��	 ����	��%(	%(�	
��&��%.	��%	&�	%(�	

�&C���%.	��	���&�	�������%�	�������	�% �
E	 4(���	����	 ��������	����	 %(�	 %���	 %&9��	 %�	/����	 %(�	&�����&%���	 %�	


����%%�� �
E	 6(.	�����	%(�	��&���/��	�����%��	��%	��	��	%(�	&�����&�%-�	�%(��	��%� �
E	 ����	�/C��%���	 ���%	 %(&%	 %(�	&�����&�%	(&�	�����&�	 %(�	
����%%��	 ��	

������%	��	%(�	���%	��G� �
E	 �%	 �&�	 &���	 ����������	 %(&%	 %(�	 %�&����	 �&%&	 ��������	 �&�	 ��&����&%�	

&��	�����&���� �
E	 �%	�&�	&���	/�������	%(&%	%(�	��&��	�&�	&����	%�	%(�	&�����&%���	&%	&	

�&%��	 �&%�	 %�	 ������	 %(&%	 %(�	 &�����&%���	 �&�	 ���%�&��.	 %��&%��	 &�	 &	
��&����	��%� �

E	 
������	 �&�	 �&����	 %(&%	 &�%(���(	 %(�	 ��������	 ��&���/��	 �����%��	
�&�	C��%	�����	1::9�	�%	�����	/�	�����&���	��	%(�	��%��� �

2



	

E	 4(���	 �&�	 �������	 %(&%	 %(�	 �����%	 (&�	 /���	 ���%%��	 ��	 &	 �&.	 %�	
�����&�	%(�	
����%%�� �

E	 4(�	 F�&�����&%����	 ��	 ����	 ��	 %(�	 ����������&�	 ������%���	 (&�	 &���	
/���	F���%����� �

E	 
������	 (&�	 /���	 �&����	 ��	 ������%	 ��	 ����	 ��	 %(�	 ��&�������%�	
���%&����	��%(��	%(�	�����% �

E	 ����	��	%(�	���&�	�������%�	���%	%(&%	%(�	��	��&�%	�(����	��%	/�	��%(��	
*:::	��%���	��	&	�������%�&�	�������� �

E	 4(�	�����	��	��������	(&�	&���	/���	�&����	/.	���&�	�������%� �
E	 4(�	��(����&�	�������%�	���%&����	��%(��	%(�	�����%	����	�����%�� �
E	 4(�	�������	��	������%	��	&������%�	��	%(�	�)7	����	&���	�����%�� �
E	 �����	����	%(�	��	��&�%	�&�	&�	�����	%(&%	(&�	&���	/���	�&���� �
E	 ��&�%(	��������	(&�	/���	�&����	��%(	�&�%����&�	���������	�&��	%�	&	

���&�	�������%	�(�	��������	��%(	&�%(�& �
E	 4(�	�&�9	��	&	��%�	�&�&�����%	��&�	(&�	&���	/���	�&���� �
E	 4(�	 ����������%	 �����.	 (&�	 ���������	 %(&%	 ����	 ��	 ��&�����	

����������	 �&�	 ��&�%��	 &	 �������	 �&.	 ��%	 /�	 ��&�%��	 ���	 %(�	
����&%��� �
�

•	 
���������	 �&���%��	 %(��	 %��9	 %(�	 �����%���%.	 %�	 �(&��	 (��	 ���	 �����	 ��%(	 %(�	

����%%��#	(�	&������	%(&%D�
�

E	 ��	(&�	 ���%����	 %�	&��	 �����	&��	����������	 %(&%	 %(�	&�����&%���	(&�	
/���	/���(%	����&��	��	&	�������	�&. �

E	 
��&�	������	�(����	��%	/�	���������	���	%&9���	&�	��%����%	��	���&�	
��&�����	������ �

E	 4(�	 &�����&�%	 �&��	 &	 ��������&�%	 ���%��/�%���	 %�	 %(�	 ���&�	 ������.	
&��	�&�	&	�&C��	���&�	�����.�� �

E	 4(���	����	�����	/�������	��&����	���	%(�	&�����&%��� �
E	 4(�	&�����&�%	�����	(&��	����	����	%�	�������	�&%%��	��%(	%(�	���&��	

&��	&������	%(���	�������� �
E	 �%	�&�	��	%(�	&�����&�%-�	��%����%	%�	������	%(�	��&�%	�&�	����%(�. �
E	 4(�	 &�����&%���	 ������	 %�	 /�	 ����������	 ��	 �%�	 ����%�	 ��%(	 ���	

��������&%���	�����	%�	%(�	��������	�&����	��	������%	��	(�&�%( �
E	 4(�	9�.	�������	���&%��	%�	%�&����	�&�&�����% �
E	 ����������%�	 ����	 ������	 %�	 %(�	 �% 	 ����-�	 
����	 �������&��#	

%(���	����������%�	�����	/�	����(% �
E	 ���&��.	 %(�	 ���&�	 ���/��	 &������	 %(&%	 (�	 (&�	 ��	 �/C��%���	 %�	 %(�	

&�����&%���	��/C��%	%�	%(�	��������	/����	&�������� �
	

���������	"�	�.��#	%(�	�%(��	���&�	�&��	���/��#	&����D	
	

•	 ���	�&��	�������	�&�	���&�����	%(�	&�����	%�	%(�	��%�	����	%(�	�)1+*#	(������	
�(�	�&�	�&%������	%(&%	%(��	(&�	/���	&�������� �

•	 4(�	&�����&�%	(&�	&������	%(&%	C�����.�	����	%(�	��%�	�����	���	/�	�������	&�	&	
�����%	��	%(�	��������	&�����&%��� �

•	 4(�	
������	�&�	������%�.	���9���	��%�	&	�����%���	��	%(�	�����	����%	���	�% 	
����-�	
���� �

3



	

��	��������	%�	&	F���%���	����	&	'��/��	��	%(�	
����%%��#	%(�	!������&�	!�&�����	
�������	���������	%(&%	%(�	���(�&.�	�����.	(&�	��%	�����	��%	&��������	%(�	��%�	����	
%(�	�)7	/�%	%(�.	(&�	������	&	(������	�����%���	��F���%���	&	��3&��������%	��	%(�	
&�����	��	�%	����	%�	/�	���� 	4(�	&�����&�%	(&�	%(�������	�������	��%	%�	�������	��%(	%(��	
&����� 	
	
��	��������	%�	&	���%(��	F���%���#	%(�	!������&�	!�&�����	�������	&������	%(&%	�(�	�&�	��%	
&�&��	��	&�.	/���(����	��%(��	+1:	��%���	��	%(�	��%� 	�(�	&����	%(&%	%(�	&�����&�%	
�����	���%	��	%(�	�&��	��%(��	%(��	&��&	&��	(�	(&�	�%&%��	%(&%	%(���	����	����	��	(��	
�&�� 	
	
�	'��/��	��	%(�	
����%%��	������	%(�	��/&%�	/.	���&9���	��	������%	��	%(�	
&�����&%��� 	��	&���	�&��	���������	%�	%(�	������	�&����	��	������%	��	�����/��	/���(����	
��	%(�	���H���%.	��	%(�	��%�	&��	&������	'��/��	%(&%	���	%�	%(�	���%(	��	%(�	(���#	����	
8:	%�	0:	��%���#	%(�	�&%��	�����	/�	��&��	����	��	%�	%(���	�����	&�&. 	��	��%��	%(�	
��������	�&����	��	������%	��	&������%�	&%	%(�	�������&��	/�%	��%��	%(&%	����	��	%(�	
&������%�	��������	%�	(&�	��������	&�	&	�����%	��	�&��	��(�����#	(�	%(�������	����������	
%(&%	��������	%(�	&�����&%���	��	�������	��	(��(�&.	�&��%.	�����	��%	/�	������&/�� 	��	
�������	��	(�	&������	%(�	
����%%��	%(&%	(�	(&�	����%��	&�	��&���/��	�����%��	
�����%�.	�(��(	(&�	��������	��	�����	&��	�����	��%	/�	(�&��	��%��	��%(��	1	��%���	��	
%(�	��&���	�����%��	���% 	���&��.	(�	��%��	%(�	������%	��	%(�	��&�/.	����&�9	!&���(	

������	&��	��F���%��	%(&%	%(�	&�����&%���	/�	&�������	��	&�����&���	��%(	%(�	�&��	
�������-�	���������&%��� 	
	
'��/���	���%�����	%�	�������	%(�	&�����&%��� 	4(�	�����	��	��������	�&�	�&����	/�%	�%	
�&�	����������	%(&%	&�.	�����	��������	�����	/�	��%��&%��	%(����(	%(�	���������	��	&	
���%&��&/��	��/&�	��&��&��	����%���	����������	��	��&��&��	��&����	��%�	&	��&��	�(��(	
�����	(���	%(�	�&%��	������	(�&�.	�������	��	�&���&�� 	
	
4(�	�����	��	����&%���	�&%&	��	������%	��	��&���/��	�����%��	��&�%�	�&�	&���	�&����	/.	&	
'��/��	��	%(�	
����%%�� 	�%	�&�	����������	%(&%	%(��	�&.	/�	&	/�������&�	�H������	%�	
������	%(&%	%(���	����	���������%	��&�%�	%(����(��%	%(�	����%.	���������	&��F�&%�	����� 	
	
4(�	
����%%��	&���	�&����	%(�	�����/���%.	��	��F���%���	&	���%���	*:8	&�������%	%�	
������	���%&/��	����������%�	����	�&��	%�	%(�	��&�/.	�������&�� 	�������	%(�	
����������%	'&�&���	I��������	&��	���%(���	
��&��%���J	&������	%(&%	%(��	�����	��%	/�	
��&���&/��	&�	��	&���%���&�	%�&����	��	%(�	�������&��	�����	/�	&%%��/�%��	%�	%(�	��������	
&�����&%��� 	'��/���	����	(������	��&������	/.	%(�	���������	��	&	%�&����	�&�&�����%	
��&�	�(��(	&��������	%(���	�������� 	
	
4(�	
����%%��	���%�����	%�	��/&%�	%(�	&�����&%���	��%(	%(�	�&C���%.	��	'��/���	
���&9���	��	������%	��	�% 	4(�.	��%��	%(�	��������	��	������%	��	(�&�%(	%(&%	(&�	/���	
�&����	/.	%(�	����(/������	�������%�	(������	%(�.	����������	%(&%	%(���	��������	(&�	
/���	&��������	��	%(�	�������-�	�����%	&��	&���%���&�	���&%�	�(��% 	4(�.	���������	
��&���/��	�����%��	��&�%�	��	�����&�	��%(	%(�	�&C���%.	��	%(�	
����%%��	��	%(�	�������	
%(&%	��	����&%��	��������/�.	%(���	�����	/�	��%%��	���&�%	��	%(�	����(/������	�������%�	
&��	%(&%	����	��&�%�	�����	/�	���%&����	%(����(��%	%(�	
���%.	����	%(�	������	.�&�� 	
	

����������	�&���%��	&��	�.��	����	�����	%(�	�����%���%.	%�	�����	%(�	��/&%� 	4(�.	
���%��&%��	%(���	�������	���&�9�	&��	�&��	&���%���&�	������%�#	���������D	
	

•	 4(�	���&�	�������%�-	��������	��	������%	��	%�&����	����	�&��� �
•	 4(�	���%�&%(	��������	%�	�(����	/�	�����%�� 	
•	 4(���	����	��	�&���	��&�����	��&����	%�	������	%(�	&�����&%��� 	
•	 4(�	 &������%�	 ��������	 %�	 /.	 %(�	 �/C��%���	 �����	 ��%	 /�	 ���9��	 %�	 %(�	 �&��	

��%������� 	

4



	

	
!��891�0�
�
�����4��������4
���##�	���
������
��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2�����	�����	�#+�
�
)*� /()����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���-
����4
���##�	�.�
� �
'*� �()�0
<
�	4�
���������	�����
�2������
��44�	<
��4���#�
�
�*� ��
�
B�
������	�	�������
���#��	
�����4���#�	
���
��
<
�	4�
����
�
�$�

�44�	<
��#������
�4
����
���$���������
��������	�����
�2�����
����#�
2�������<
�
��#���

��#������
���	������44�	<
�����2��������$���
��	����
4������������	���$*�

�
!
�#	�+��	�4�	�
�����
�<�#������
����
#�	
���
���
�������	��	�4�$�2������
�
�
C���
�
��#�	
�4	���$�0!)�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
>*� "������
	����	���#�	
���$��
2������#��
��
��
�����	�#�����
�����

�	��
���	��2������
��
<
�	4�
����
�
�$�4
�����
�����
�4�	4	#
��
��#�������
�������0������
��	����	��-��0�.�#������
��	�#�����
������
��4�
�
��
��������	�����
�2������
�#������
��=5�		��!�#��/##
##�
���
�������
��
�"��
��0������
������
�$=�������
�
	��	2����4���#�������
�
�<
��
	��)���
4�
��
��'()'+�
D�,!�(()(?��6!�)(?��0��()E���0��0
#����')?7?)'�
D�,!�(()(?��6!�)(?��0��('+���0����	##��
���	��')?7?)'�
D�,!�(()(?��6!�)(?���(�+�/0��������	##��
���	��')?7?)'�
��
�4�	<�#�	��	
���
�4�	4	#
���
�
���	����#���-#2��
.�#������
����	�4	���
��
���	���	��<
�#��$�
�����
�
����
�#��
#��#�	�����
�������
�#��
�
�
�
C���
�����
���	�����	��@��
�	2��2�����


�
��
��	���	��<
�#��$�/���	��
�����4��	���$�#4
��
#������������#*�

�
!
�#	�+���	�4�	<��
�#���#
���	�$�#��
��
�2��
�������
�
��������������
��
������#
�
�		����#���������4�	<
���	��<
�#��$�������	�����
�2����4	����
#�
�)���'��0!)��0!>����)����@����;����7�������%�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�
������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
�*� �

	�
���
��
<
�	4�
����
�
�$�4
�����
���
���#�������

��������
�
���

�����-���.�#������
�#������
���	������44�	<
�����2��������$���
��	����
4������������	���$*����
�����#�����������
���
�
	��	2�������4���������+�

�
�*������
�
����
��	�	�	�$�
	��<
����
#������
��<
��
#��������
�	�#������	��	
���
�4����������������2	�������	��#������	��
#��	��
��#
�E�
�*������
�
����
��	�	�	�$�
	��<
����
#������	<
�
��#��������	4
����	��
	
���
�4����������������2	�������	��#������	��
#��	��
��#
�E�
�*�/���##
##�
���	
���
�
B�#��������
##��	���
��>�')���<�����
������	���
�
������4��
��������	�����#
������
����#�	
���$�<�#������$���4�	<
�
��#�
�	�#��
�
���
�
##��$E�
�*�0
����#�	
���
�����
�#���$4
#�#�F
�����2
����#�	
�����<
����
#��	��
��#
��
����	��
���	��2������
����
�	�������
#�
�E�

*��
��#�	
�
�#�����������
��<
�$����<
�#����
##������
�#��
���
�
���$�
��
	��
���#��	��	����	�����	�#�������
����
#4	�#�������
#���	�����
��
��<
�$�
�	��
E�

*�/##�����
#��������
�����#������
���������#
����	���	�����
���

�	
���
�
4����E�
�*��	�
������	��������	����
����#�#������
���	������	����?	����
��
�������
�
���
�	�������
#�
���
�
�$�4
�����
�����
##���
$���<
��

��4�	���
��
2��������
��44������=#������	�����*�

5



	

�
��
�����#������
���4�
�
��
��������	�����
�2������
��44�	<
���
����#*�

�
!
�#	�+���	�������#
���
���4����	
�<
����
#������
����
�
#�#�	
�����2�$�
#�

�$�������
�4	�
������
	�����

������
�#�
�����	�������
���
��������	��	�
	���
2������
��
C���
�
��#�	
�4	���$�0!��	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�
0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
�
@*� �

	�
���
��
<
�	4�
����
�
�$�4
�����
���
���#����9���#��4��������

 �������������
�
������
�
�
	����
�#��
��������
##��	���#������
�
#������
���	������44�	<
�����2��������$���
��	����4������������	���$*���
�
���
�
�#�����������
����4���������+�

�
�	
������#��4���+�
�*�/�4�����	�#���
�)+�((�	��)+)(((�#�	2������
���$	���	
�4�	4	#
����

��
�
��
�����#

�������
�#E�
�*�/�2����
��#4
��
�����	����
���$��
#����������
�#4
��
#��#�F
#���
�#���
#�
����4������������
�#�������<�����
����#�	
������<���	������	��
��	4
����	�#�
�##	����
��2����4�����
#�����#��
��E�
�*�0
����#�	
�#4
��
���4�	4	#��#��	�4�	<��
�	��
�����
�2�����

��������#��
�������������	�����
�	
���
�4��	���$�#4
��
#���
�#��
�
��#����
��
���	�
�����������<����4�����������
�����
	����
���	4�
����	��<
�#��$�/���	��������
��
���4�	<
�
���	
��
��
�	2#�����
�
���������#������
��������2�����

��	�
���
���<�����
�	
���
��
�
���	����#���-#2��
.��#�4����	
���
���0��4�	<�#�	�E�
�*�/������
�
���4�����	�
�#��
��
�
�6���
�	
�4�������������	�������$�
	��
�������#��
	����#4
��
�
��4
��	��	
�����
�#��
�<
�$
��#E�
�
 ��������#��4���+�

*�/�4�����	�#�	2���
�4	#���	����
#�����������
����#�	
�����#��
�
���	#��
#�
�������������������

��
#�
��E�

*�0
����#�	
������#��
���������
����#E�

�
��
�#��
�
�#������
���4�
�
��
���#��44�	<
��������������
��
	����
�
���

��4
��	�*��0���������#����
����$���

#�	��4����#�2�������
��
�	<
���
��
��	����
�#
��	�#�$��
����
��#������
��
4���
�����������
��
B��4��������
#
�#	��2����	��
�#�	
�#�������#�F
#�����#4
��
#*���
���$�4����#�
�����	�
������
	��
���
$�#������	�����
��	��
��
4���
��	��������������#�#���������
�
���	
�
��
��
�
�6���
�4
��	�*�

�
!
�#	�+��	���4�	<
���	��<
�#��$������	��
���<��$�
	��2�����

�������4�	<
�
�
��
�	2��
�
��������������2
�������������#��������	�����
�2������
�
�
C���
�
��#�	
�4	����
#��)���'���;��0!)��0!>����)����@����;����7����%�
�����5>�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
;*� �()����
���<
#������	��6������
	�	�$�
�
7*� �)@�!
#������	��	
��	��#���������	�#������	��
�
%*� 5('�!
#������	��	���	��#�	
��
��<
�$�
�
)(*� ��
��
<
�	4�
����
�
�$�4
�����
��#������	���
���	��������	��#
����
##�	��

��������
�#������
��#��
�
�	
��	�#
���������	�������	���	��	�����
�����
�
4	����


�
��
�!))*)'(�?0!3�-�	�#
�1������	���	�#������#�9����'��
5
�����$�'()'.���#��

����4�
�
��
�����
�������<����4�����������
�����
	��
#
���	�#�;�����7�	
�������
4	��*����
�#��
�
�#������	�����
��	��
�

6



	

��4�
�
��
��
	����
���

�	
���
��
<
�	4�
����#��A
����	���$��
<�
2�	��
��
���
��#��#���$��
��

�
���
�
##��$������
��	��#
*�

�
!
�#	�+����	��
���	�4�	�
�����
���
���$�	
���
�	���4�
�#�	
��
���$�
4�	4
���
#������	��	�4�$�2����4	����
#�0!)�������5>�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�
������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
))*� ��
��
<
�	4�
����
�
�$�4
�����
��#������	���
���	��������	��#
����
##�	��

���������	�4�
�
�#�<
�8�	����������<��	��
����������
�
���������#�#
��
	������4������4�#��*>���*>*)������*>*'�	
���
�#������
����44	������
����
�
���-
���
��))�8��	�
��'()'.����#��

��#������
���	������44�	<
�����
2��������$���
��	����4������������	���$*�����������	�����
������#�����������
�
��
�
	��	2�������4���������+�

�
�.���
��44	����
���	
������
��C����
�
�������
#4	�#���
�4
�#	���	�	<
�#

�
��4�
�
�����	��	
���
�4���E�
�.�84
����	�����	�����
���
#�
	���
������2������$����	�����
<
��#�-
*�*�

��
��
�		���#4�����
.E�
�.���	�����	��	
���2	�������������
	��#��

���	<
���������#��
�	4
����	�#�
����������


�#�	����������������
#���
�������������#������
�
�������

�
��
��$�4�	�
���
#E�
�.���	<�#�	��	
���#��
�����$��	��
��
4��	��#��
����2�������$6�	6��$�
	�#
�<���	�#���������	�#���
��
�	��
���������������$��	�4�����#�����
�
#4	�#
#*���
�����$�#������
����
��<������
�
	����#4
���	���$���
��	����
����	���$�	���
C�
#������
�#	����
����
#*�
��
�#��
�
�#������
���4�
�
��
���#��44�	<
�������#������	�����
��	��
�
��4�
�
��
��
	����
���

�	
���
��
<
�	4�
����#��A
����	���$��
<�
2�	��
��
���
��#��#���$��
��

�
���
�
##��$������
��	��#
*�

�
!
�#	�+����	��
���	�4�	�
�����
���
���$�	
���
�	���4�
�#�	
��
���$�
4�	4
���
#���	�4�
<
���4	�����	�������	��	�4�$�2����4	����
#��'��0!)��0!>��
0!%��0!)�������5>�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
)'*� "������#�B��	���#�	
���
�
C��4�
����
�
�$��44�	<
���
�	������
���������

��	4
����<
�	��4
����
���$����#
�����
����
�	�������
#�
����������
�##	����
����
��#�������
�#������
��
�	<
�������
6�#
����
�$��
�������
���
����#��
�	<
�
���	���
�
�����$���#4	#
��	
��	�����44�	4����
����
�#
��
2�#�
�
������$����������	��
��	
�4�


�
��
*�

�
!
�#	�+��	�
�#��
���#���#
���	�$�
	���	
��
<
�	4�
�����<	�����$�
$
#	�
�

�	���
��������4������4�
<
���4	�����	��������	�#�

��������
�
�<��	��
���
2�
����
����
����#��
������
�
���	
���
�����

��������	�����
�2����4	����
#�
�)���'��0!)������5>�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
)�*� ����	��
���	��2������
��
<
�	4�
����
��$�4
�����
����	�4	����$�����
��	��

�����
�	��2�#�
�#������
������
��	����
�4����������2�$����
##�����#��
���
2��������#
��
��	��#
���
�$�#�

�
��<
����
*�

�
!
�#	�+��������
����
�
#�#�	
��	���#�

�$�������
���
���$�	
���
��	�����$������
�	��	�4�$�2������
��
C���
�
��#�	
�4	����
#��'��0!���0!>��0!%������7�	
�
��
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
)>*� �';����
��
4��	��	
�#��
��
�2��
������	

�
�
)�*� ��'�0
����#�	
�
�		���������?
B�
��������������
�
)@*� ��(�!
#������	��	��#�	���
�	
�	�������2�#�
#�	��#����
�

7



	

�
!
�#	��
	��/44�	<���
�
)*� ��
�4�	4	#�����#��

���	�#��
�
����<����4�����������
������	�4	##���
�

��<
�#
�



��#�
�	��<
����
��	<
�
��#���	�#
��	�	�������
�		����#�����	���
2����4	�
��������4���#�	������#��4
��<�#������
���$������
����*����
�
4�����4�
#��
��������	��
�
2���
�
�
��$��#�#����������$���������	��
		�4�����
�
�����	����<
��

�����
�����	����	�������������	
�����
�������	����4	���$*�
/��
�	�������
#��	���#���#�#�������
��
�
2���
�
�
��$�	4��	��
	��
����



��
��������2	����	��
�2�#
��
�2�#�
*�5����
��	�
����
�
������
#���
��#���
<������
�

�����#
��
�	��2�����4�	4	���	�#�	
���
�4	������������	�	�	�#�

�
�
��#���<
��

���
�	<
���$���
�4�	�
##*���#��#
�	��������#��
����
���#�
���
�

��*���
��

��
	���
�
2���
�
�
��$������
#�2
�����4�	<��
��	��
��

���	�#������
��������
�E���
�#��
�������
�4�	4	#�����<
��

���##
##
��
2�������#��������*�84
����	��	
���
�4�����2	�����
��
�����
���$����
��<��	��
������
������##�
���$���
���<��	��
���/�
��$������
�������
���	������
�4��������#$#�
�*�����������	
���
���	<
����
�4�	4	#����#�
�	�#��
�
���	����	���2�����	���
���4���
�	
��	�4�����
�2�����4	����
#��)��
�'���@���;���))��0!)��0!'��0!���0!>��0!%��0!)���0!)>���@���7��9/'��9/@��
��)����@����7����%��/!� )��/!� @������5>�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�
0
<
�	4�
��������������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	����2����
4����������-�����	��
B���#�<
.��


�
��
��	�4������4�#�'7��%���%;�%7��)7@��
)7;��)%@�����)%;*����
��	����4������������	���$���#�
����
�����4�	6����<
�
����4	#���<
��
�	�����	��2������
��44�������������
���
$��������
�#�	
�
�	��
����	���������
����
���
����#����������
�����	���#��
C���
�������
�	�#��
�����4�	4	#��#�	


�
���	�����
##�4	���#����#
���$��
#4	��
��#*�/#�
���
#�������
��	����4������������	���$���#��

�����
��	�������4��������
4
���##�	��
	�����
4����
��
<
�	4�
���#��A
����	��	�����	�#�����
�<	���	
�
#�#�������
��
<
�	4�
����#��

��
�������
�����	��������������	���$�

���
2	��*�

�
��58!�/��1��+�
�
)*� ��
�9	�������������/���	���$���#����
��4	#���<
�$�����4�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��44������	���$��##
##������
�4�	4	#��������#��4��������
4	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#*��
�	�����	�#�����
#4
���	
�
����
�#�	
��	��
���2������
��44������	��-�#�	��������$�#������
�.���<
�
�
#���
�������
���
��#��	���
�4�	4	#��*��/#����
#�������
�9	�������������
/���	���$���#��

�����
��	�������4��������4
���##�	��
	��������
4����
�
4�	4	#����������	�����
�2������
�4�
#��4��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	4�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*���

�
'*� �))/�"�����

������	����$#��
�/���)%7)�-�#���
��
�.�6�����#�
�
�*� �))��,
�
����
�
>*�  �()�����	������2�$�
�
�� ��
��44��������#���<�#
���	��	��������
���#
�	

��
��2�
��4�
4��������
�

�
����#��
C���
���������
##������
���	<
��	�����	�#���	�
����
�����#	��2����
������<��
�
�	��	��
���
4����
��#�4��	���	�#����##�	�*�

	
	
	
	
	
	

8



	

)'�*� �)''7'(?�0�6�9/�0�/��5�!��!���9/����!8� �!"/��� �!�58!0� �!����
	
4(�	!������&�	!�&�����	�������	�&��	&	������%&%���	��	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���&%��	2	
&���%���&�	��������%&%����	��������	���������	%(�	��/���&%���	��	%(�	&����&	����	
��������	��	%(�	���&%�	�(��% 	
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	�&�&��&�(	) ; + +	��	%(�	
������-�	
���%�%�%���#	
���������	!	�����&��3
A����#	%(�	���&�	�&��	���/��#	������%��	��	&	���/��	��	������#	���������D	
	

•	 
����	�������(&�	!&���(	
������	(&�	�&����	��	�/C��%����	%�	%(�	&�����&%��� �
•	 �������	!&���(	
������	(&�	�&����	&	���/��	��	��������	/�%	%(���	(&�	���	&��	

/���	&�������� �
•	 4(�	'�����	�������	������	������%�.	(�����	*01::	/�H��#	*::::	�������	&��	

,:::	�&�� �
•	 4(�	���%��	(&�	%�	����	%�	&	���	���&%���#	&�%���&%����.	�%	�����	����	��%����	��	

%(�	
���%. �
•	 4(�	�����&%���	�����	&�%	&�	&	�&%&�.�%	 ���	 %(�	��%�������	G���	&��	������%�&%�	

%(&%	%(�	��%�������	G���	�&�	��%	C��%	&����	&%	���9�&.	���� �
	
4(�	
����%%��	������	%(�	��/&%�	/.	��������	��	%(�	���%&��&/��	�&%���	��	%(�	
����������% 	4(�	
����%%��	��%��	%(&%	%(&%	%(�	��������	/�������	�&�	/���%	%�	
B!&����(&��-	�%&��&���	&��	�&�	&�	�H����&�	��	�����.	��������%#	���%&��&/��	������	
�(��(	�����	���&%�	&�	�H������%	����������%	���	����� 	
	
����	�������	�&�	�H�������	��	������%	��	%(�	��������	���&%���	��	%(�	/������� 	�	
���/��	��	'��/���	����	��	%(�	�������	%(&%	�%	�����	/�	/�%%��	���&%��	��%(��	%(�	��%.	
���%��	%(��	�&9���	�%	����	&������/��	%�	����� 	
������	�&�	&���	�H�������	���&�����	
%(�	
������	&�������	%(�	�������	������	%�	�����&%�	%�	%(�	��%(���&�	��%�������	K���	&%	&	
%���	�(��	�%(��	/���������	��%(��	%(�	��%.	(&�	��%	/���	�����%%��	%�	��	�� 	
	

���������	�����&��3A����	�&�	�����	%(�	�����%���%.	%�	�����	%(�	��/&%� 	��	���%��&%��	(��	
�������	���&�9�	&��	�&��	&���%���&�	������%�#	���������D	
	

•	 4(�	'�����	�������	������	�&�	���	%(�	�(���	
���%.	%�	���	&��	�����	/�	����	
&������/��	%(&�	�%�	������%	�&����	�%���%	���&%��� 	

�
!��891�0�
�
�����4��������4
���##�	���
������
��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2�����	�����	�#+�
�
)*� /()����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���-
����4
���##�	�.� �
�
'*� �()�0
<
�	4�
���������	�����
�2������
��44�	<
��4���#�
�
�*� 9()�5	��?#��
��
�2��
���������
�
�
>*� 9('��	�#��
��
�2��
���	��	��
����	�4������#$#�
��
�
�*� 9(���	��������
����6	

��	�4������#$#�
��
�
@*� ,))�9���#��4����#��
�
�G���4�
�
�����	��
�
;*� ��
��
�	��
�����	�#�#
��	��������
�
�	�	��#�H#��
4	������
����$�'()'�

#�	�����
�
	��	2
�*����	���	��	��
��
�
���	
���
��
<
�	4�
������
����
2	�������
��	��#���
�
���������������
�����
�
���#��
�
�#�	�����
�

9



	

#������
���	������
��44�	<
�����2��������$���
��	����4������������	���$��
������
�2	���#������
���4�
�
��
���#��44�	<
�*�

�
!
�#	�+���	�
�#��
����������#4
��
#���
�4�	�
��
����<�����
������	���
�
"�����

������	����$#��
�/���)%7)�-�#���
��
�.����
��	�#
�<���	��	
�
 ������#������4
��
#�!
������	�#�'()(������	����
#���)����@�������;�	
�
��
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
��������

�
7*� �(@�5���#�
��
�		���
<
�#�
�
%*�  )��/��
##������������
������4�������
�
)(*�  ')�"�

��2�#�����
�
))*�  ';���������
	��#��
�	4
����<
#�
�
)'*�  '%��
���
��	<
�
���$��
�4�������4�	<�#�	��
�
)�*� ���	���	���
�
��#��	���4���	��	
���
��
<
�	4�
������5�		���<������	��

�����
�
��������#������
�#������
���	������44�	<
�����2��������$���
�
�	����4������������	���$*���
�4����#�����������
�
�����
����#�	
�4�	4	#
��
�2��
�
##��������������4�	�
���
�
	��
<������	��	
�4
�#	�#�����4�	4
��$�
-����������<
����
#.�����������	
�#��

E������
��	������4�	�
���
#�
	�����
��

<������	�*����#�������#	�������
����	�����
����	��
����������4���
���
�4����
����������
������
#���
�
	���
<�#�	��	
���
�4���*�

�
!
�#	�+����	�������#
�����
���	�4
	4�
������
�
�		����#����
��������	�����
�
2�����	���$�0!;�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
������������
�������
��	�����
��2��������
�����'���������
�,���
*�

�
!
�#	�#�
	��/44�	<����
�
)*� ��
��44������	����#��

���	�#��
�
����<�����
������	�������$�0
<
�	4�
���

�����4	����
#��)���'��0!)��0!'��0!���0!>��0!;��0!)(���)�������7���@���;��
9/���9/@����)�����������5�*��,������
������	��������
�����	�������������
�	���$�5���
2	���'()'���#���#	��

���	�#��
�
�����	��#��
���
�!	��
�2�#�
5����
#�0������
�����5�		�������
�
��������
�$�'((%*���

�
��
��	����4������������	���$��	�����
#��������
�4�	4	#
�������<
�#�	�
�
�	�4��
#�2����������$�0
<
�	4�
���������	����
#��)������������������
�
4�����$��#
#�2��������
����������
����2���������##
#��)������7�	
���
��#
�
���##
#�8��
��'()'�-/#���
��
�.*��"
�������#���#	��

���44	���	�
���	�
��
��

��
	����
�
������$�������
�#��
H#�#���������$�2�
���##
##
�������#��
	��
��4	�
������#��
#*�

�
��
�����������#����
B
�4����	
�
�
��$�


���
����
#�����������#���
�4	�
������
�	����#
���
�#��������	
��
#�����	����$�������	�����
�2������
�����	����
����������	���$�5���
2	��H#��#4�����	�#�����������$�0
<
�	4�
��������
4	����
#��)�����0!)*����������4�	<�#�	���������
##������$��#�������	�����
�
2�����	���$�0!��������
��#
�2	������<
��	���4�����4	����
���
���$�	
�
�
����	������4�	4
���
#��������������
�
	��
��
��
���H#�C����
�#��	���
�
�	���62
#�*��

��
��58!�/��1��+�
�
)*� ��
�9	�������������/���	���$���#����
��4	#���<
�$�����4�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��44������	���$��##
##������
�4�	4	#��������#����	4�
��

10



	

4��������4	���$�����	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#������������
�
4�
#
�����	�#��������<
��

���
�
�<
�*������#�#��#
C�
���$��
�
����
���	�
������4��������4
���##�	��������	�����
�2������
�4�
#��4��	�����
�<	���	
�
#�#�������
��
<
�	4�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�
5���
2	��*���

�
'*� �))��,
�
����
	

)'@*� �)''@>>?5�6��/!� �5/!������8����� 8���!8��68�6":��� !%�;�����
	
4(�	������	!�&�����	�������	�&��	&	������%&%���	��	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���&%��	2	
&���%���&�	��������%&%����	��������	���������	%(�	��/���&%���	��	%(�	&����&	����	
��������	��	%(�	���&%�	�(��% 	
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	%(�	���%���&	���	��/���	���&9���#	'�	���%��#	%(�	&�����&�%-�	&���%#	
���9�	��	������%	��	%(�	&�����&%��� 		
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	�&�&��&�(	) ; + +	��	%(�	
������-�	
���%�%�%���#	
���������	��	���9��#	
%(�	���&�	�&��	���/��#	������%��	��	&	���/��	��	������#	���������D	
	

•	 4(�	&�����&%���	���&%��	�����.	%�	%(�	��%��%���	��	���	��/���	(���	��	%(�	��%�#	&��	
�%(��	�&%%��	����	���	�������� �

•	 4(�	��/���	(���	(&�	/���	�������	��&�����	����������	��	+::; �
•	 '�	�����&��	���	��%	���	%(�	��%�	�(��	%(�	����������	(&�	/���	������� �
•	 4(�	 �����&�	 ��	 %(�	 ��/���	 (���	 �&�	 %(�	 ���&�	 �����	 ��	 ����������%	 &�%���	

��F�����	&�	�&�%	��	%(�	!�&�����	������%��-�	�������� �
•	 4(�	!�&�����	������%��	(&�	����������	%(�	�����%&���	��	%(�	���(&��	��	�&9���	

(��	�������� �
•	 4(�	��%��%���	��	%(�	��/���	(���	�����	(&��	&�	���&�%	��	%(�	���(&��	&��	%(�	

/���������%.	��	%(�	��%� �
•	 4(�	��������	���&%���	��	%(�	��/���	(���	�&�	&	������� �
•	 6��9	(&�	&���&�.	/���	���������	��	%(�	��%� �
•	 4(�	 ������%��-�	 ��������	 �(����	 /�	 /������	 ��	 %(�	 
������	 &��	 �(����	 /�	

�������� �
•	 4(���	�&�	��	�/C��%���	 %�	&	��/���	(���	��	 %(�	��%�	&�	 ����	&�	 �%	�&�	 ���&%��	

��%����	��	%(�	����������%	&��& �
•	 4(�	 &�����&%���	 �(����	 /�	 �������	 &��	 ����������%	 &�%���	 �(����	 /�	

��������� �
	
4(�	
����%%��	������	%(�	��/&%�	/.	����������	%(�	����������%	��%���	��	������%	��	
%(�	��/���	(���	��	%(�	��%� 	�%	�&�	��%��	%(&%	%(�	����������%	��%���	������	��	
���%��/��	+:**	�&�	.�%	%�	/�	��������	��%( 	'��/���	������	%(���	��������	%(&%	%(�	
��������	%��	.�&�	����������	�����	�����%	��	���%(��	����������%	�����	��	%(�	��%� 	
4(�������	�%	�&�	��������	%(&%	%(�	&�����&%���	/�	�������	&��	%(�	��������	������	%(&%	
%(�	����������%	��%���	��	%(�	��%�	�&�	��������	��%( 	
	
'��/���	���%�����	%�	�������	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���%	%(&%	%(���	�&�	��	������	
����%���&�	����	���	%(�	��/���	(���	��	%(�	��%� 	�%	�&�	���%(��	��%��	%(&%	&	������	��/���	
(���	�����	��%	�������	���������%	(������	���	&��	��	%(�	���9���	��	%(�	��%�	���	%�	%(�	
�H%������	���9�	��F����� 	
	
4(�	
����%%��	���	��%�	%(&%	%(�	&�����&�%	�&�	��%	��������/��	���	%(�	��&�%(������	
����������%	��	%(�	��%�#	(������	(�	�&�	&�&��	��	%(�	����������%	������	�(��	(�	
����(&���	%(�	�&�� 	

11



	

	
'��/���	���%�����	%�	�������	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	��%��	%(&%	%(�	��%�	����%	�����%&9��	%(�	
��������	�&.	(&�	(��(���(%��	%(&%	%(�	��/���	(���	�����	/�	����	����	%(�	��/���	
(��(�&.	&�	����	&�	����	%(�	�&����	��	&	����(/������	�������% 	�%	�&�	&���	����������	
%(&%	%(�	��������	��%�	�&�	��%	&�������&%�	���	%�	%(�	��������&�	������	���������.	�&����	
/.	%(�	���&�	�&��	���/�� 	
	
'��/���	��%��	%(&%	%(�	!�&�����	������%��	(&�	�&��	&	��������	��	������%	��	%(�	��%�	
&��	%(&%	%(��	��������	�(����	/�	��������	��%(	&��	��������	/.	%(�	
������ 	
	
4(�	����������%	'&�&���	I��������	&��	���%(���	
��&��%���J	&������	'��/���	%(&%	
%(���	��������	�(����	��%	/�	/&���	��	%(�	��������	����������%	(��%��.	��	%(�	��%� 	��	
���	(������	��%�	%(&%	%(�	
����%%��	(&�	�&����	������	���&%���	%�	%(�	�&�9	��	&	����%���&�	
����	���	%(�	��/���	(���>	%(�	��%��%�&�	���&�%	��	%(�	(&/�%&%	��	���%��%��	�������->	&��	
����&�	���&�%	&�	%(�	��/���	(���	�&�	����/��	����	%(�	��/���	���%�&%( 	
	
��	��������	%�	&	F���%���	���&�����	%(�	����������%	��%���#	%(�	����������%	'&�&���	
I��������	&��	���%(���	
��&��%���J	&������	%(�	
����%%��	%(&%	%(�	����������%	��%���	
���&%��	%�	&	���/��	��	&���%���&�	�&�&�&��#	����	��	�(��(	����	��%(��	%(�	���(&��	�%���� 	
��	&����	%(&%	%(�	��/���	(���	/����	����������	%��&.	�&�	��%��	��	(&���%&�����	&��	
%(�������	%(�	
����%%��	����	�����������	&	��������%	�����	%�	%(�	���	��%�������	/.	%(�	
������%�� 	��	&����	%(&%	%(�	�&�9	��	&	����%���&�	����	%���%(��	��%(	%(�	&�����&%��	����&�	
���&�%	�����	/�	������&/��	(������	�����&�	��	%(�	�������	��	%(�	���&�%	����	
/���������%.	�����	��% 	
	
���	'��/��	��	%(�	
����%%��	&���	��%��	%(&%	(�	����������	%(�	&�����&%���	%�	/�	
���%�&�.	%�	���%&�.	����������%	!�&�	!����.	�0	&�	%(�	����������%	�����	�����%	��	
(������	��%(��	%(�	����	����%�.���� 	
	

���������	���9��	�&�	�����	%(�	�����%���%.	%�	�����	%(�	��/&%� 	��	���%��&%��	(��	
�������	���&�9�	&��	�&��	&���%���&�	������%�#	���������D	
	

•	 4(�	
����%%��	����	���(%	��%	%�	/&��	%(���	��������	��	%(�	��������	����������%	
(��%��.	��	%(�	��%� �

	
!��891�0�
�
� /��4��������4
���##�	���
��

�#
��
	����
�
	��	2�����
�#	�#+�
�
)*� ��
�
��#��������	
���
�����	�����

��
	����
��	���
��	�
�
�
'*� 8����	���#�	
�<�#������4�����#���
��	���
��	�
��#�<�#���
�
�	����
�4������


		�4���*�
	

)';*� �)''>%7?5�6�� �1�� /99��"/958!0�!8/0��!8��68�6":��� �!�58!0� �!���
 !%���I���
	
4(�	<���3
(&���&�	�&�	��	%(�	
(&��	���	%(�	���������	�%�� 	
	
4(�	������	!�&�����	�������	�&��	&	������%&%���	��	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���&%��	2	
&���%���&�	��������%&%����	��������	���������	%(�	��/���&%���	��	%(�	&����&	����	
��������	��	%(�	���&%�	�(��% 	
	
��	&�����&���	��%(	%(�	���%���&	���	��/���	���&9���#	'�	6&����9#	%(�	&�����&�%#	���9�	��	
������%	��	(��	&�����&%��� 		
	

12



	

��	&�����&���	��%(	�&�&��&�(	) ; + +	��	%(�	
������-�	
���%�%�%���#	
���������	�'	
�%9�����#	%(�	���&�	�&��	���/��#	������%��	��	&	���/��	��	������#	���������D	
	

•	 4(�	 ���&�	 �&��	 ���/���	 (&�	 &�9��	 ���	 %(�	 &�����&%���	 %�	 ����	 /�����	 %(�	

����%%�� �

•	 4(�	�&����&����	�����%���	�������	/.	%(�	�����%%��	���������.	�&�	��%	�&�%��	
/.	��%(��	�&�%. �

	
4(�	������	!�&�����	�������	���������	%(&%	%(�	
����%%��	(&�	��F���%��	&	�&����&����	
�����%���	���������.	&��	%(&%	%(��	�����	��%	/�	�������	������	&�	&�������&%�	
&�����&%���	�&�	�������� 	
	

���������	�%9�����	�&�	�����	%(�	�����%���%.	%�	�����	%(�	��/&%�	/�%	�(���	%�	�&9�	��	
���%(��	�%&%����% 	
	
!��891�0�
�
�����4��������4
���##�	���
������
��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2�����	�����	�#+�
�
)*� �()����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���-
����4
���##�	�.-)�$
��.�
�
'*� �()�0
<
�	4�
���������	�����
�2������
��44�	<
��4���#�
� �
�*� "���������	���#�	
���
����
�	
����#�4
���##�	���
����#�	
���
�4�	4	#
��

4�������
	���������
��
���
���	��	
���
��	�����$���
���
���	
���
��2
������
�
�
�$�4
�����
��������
<
������#������
�#������
���	���
��	����4��������
����	���$�
	���44�	<������2������*���
�#������
���
����#�#�����#�	2���
�
�	�#	������	��	
���
�4�������#4��
#���������
������
�������	��	
���
�
#4��
#���
���
$������
��2
�����#��	�2�������
�4�������#4��
#��
���
�������
�
4�������#4��
#�#������
��
����
�������
4��
	����
�4�������	
�<
����
#��������
���
#*�

�
!
�#	�+��	�
�#��
���
C���
�	

�#��

��4�������������
�
��#��
������������
���
#�����������44�	4����
��
<
�#�	
���
���$���
�4�	<��
��
	���	���
4�	4
���
#�#	��#��	��	�4�$�2����4	����
#�0!'��0!��� )������ )@�	
���
�
 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������*�

�
>*� 5)@��	��
2�2���	2#����#4
��
�
��
�
<���	��
�
�*� 5)>�!
�	<���	
�4
�����
���
<
�	4�
��������#�
�
!
�#	��
	��/44�	<���
�
)*� ����
����������#��
��#�	����
��	����4������������	���$���#�����4����������

�
������	�



���	
���
�4�	4	#����4	����
��
#��
��������
����
#�	
���
�
�
����	������4�	4
��$��������2�#��	�����
���������
�
�2	�����
��	�
��<
�#
���4������<����4�����������
������	���
��������
��	
���
���
�����
�
�����
��#�F
�	
���
������������
�4�
#
��
�	
�#��

��

����������4�������*��
5����
��	�
���
����
4
��
���	���4���	��	
���
����������2	������<
��	�
��#�
�����
���4�����4	����
��������
��	
���
�!	##6	�6"$
��	�#
�<���	��
/�
��������
�"$
�1���
$�/�
��	
�8��#�����������������
���$�����#��A
����	�
�	�����	�����44�	<���2	�����
�4�	<��
��2����������
4����
���������
�����
	

6�	���4������*����
�4�	4	#���2�#��	�#��
�
���	����	���2�����	����
#��'��
�;��0!)��0!'��0!��� )��� )@�� �/@�����9/)�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�
0
<
�	4�
��������������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*�

�

13



	

��58!�/��1��+�
�
)*� ��
�9	�������������/���	���$���#����
��4	#���<
�$�����4�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��44������	���$��##
##������
�4�	4	#��������#��4��������
4	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#��������������$��
4�
#
�����	�#�
�������<
��

���
�
�<
�*�������#�#��#
C�
���$��
�
����
���	�������4��������
4
���##�	��������	�����
�2������
�4�
#��4��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	4�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*���

	
)'7*� �)'';'>?5 �6�%�J�)(��/3�!��8/3��!8��68�6":��� �!�58!0� �!��� !%��!����

	
4(�	<���3
(&���&�	�&�	��	%(�	
(&��	���	%(�	���������	�%�� 	
	
4(�	������	!�&�����	�������	�&��	&	������%&%���	��	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���&%��	2	
&���%���&�	��������%&%����	��������	���������	%(�	��/���&%���	��	%(�	&����&	����	
��������	��	%(�	���&%�	�(��% 	
	
4(�	
����%%��	��%��	%(&%	%(�	&�����&%���	�&�	���.	/�����	%(��	&�	�%	(&�	/���	��/��%%��	
/.	&	�����	���&%���	��	&	
��������� 	
	
!��891�0�
�
�����4��������4
���##�	���
������
��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2�����	�����	�#+�
�
)*� /()����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���-
����4
���##�	�.�
� �
'*� �('�0
<
�	4�
���������	�����
�2�����44�	<
��4���#��������
����#�
�
�*� �)@�!
#������	��	
��	��#���������	�#������	��
�
!
�#	��
	��/44�	<����
�
)*� ��
��44������	���
4�
#
��#����
B�
�#�	��	
����
4����
�#�F
��#���
�����
	���

����

4����2��������#��#
�<�
����	���
�	���������2
�����#��
#�����������	�
��<
�#
���4�����4	����A	�������
#��
��������
���$�	����
��������
������
�44
�����
�	
����/�
��	
�8��#�����������������
���$*�5����
��	�
���
�
4�	4	#����#��	�#��
�
���	�#���#
$� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
��������
4	����
#�0!)��0!'�� )7�����9/)�������
��
C���
�
��#�	
���
�����	����
����������	���$�5���
2	���

�
��58!�/��1��+�
�
)*� ��
�9	�������������/���	���$���#����
��4	#���<
�$�����4�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��44������	���$��##
##������
�4�	4	#��������#��4��������
4	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#��������������$��
4�
#
�����	�#�
�������<
��

���
�
�<
�*������#�#��#
C�
���$��
�
����
���	�������4��������
4
���##�	��������	�����
�2������
�4�
#��4��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	4�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*���

	
	

)'%*� �)'�'>;?5 �6���/08"���0��9���9���8"/!�����!8�:/!0�� !;�>!,���
	
4(�	!������&�	!�&�����	�������	�&��	&	������%&%���	��	%(�	&�����&%���	&��	���&%��	2	
&���%���&�	��������%&%����	��������	���������	%(�	��/���&%���	��	%(�	&����&	����	
��������	��	%(�	���&%�	�(��% 	
	

14



	

4(�	
����%%��	��%��	%(&%	%(�	&�����&%���	�&�	���.	/�����	%(��	&�	�%	(&�	/���	��/��%%��	
/.	&	�����	���&%���	��	&�	�������	��	%(�	
������ 	
	
!��891�0�
�
���A
����	��	�
����
��	�A
���	�#����#����������	�������
�����4��������
�	�#��
����	�#��$���
�
���	
���
��	�#������	��4
��	������
�	

��
�#����
�������
�
#��
�
�	
��
�
����	���
�����	��#
���	��44�	<
���
��44������	��#��A
����	���
�

	��	2�����	�����	�#�������$�������	�����	�����	�#��	�#��
�
���
�
##��$��$�
	

��
�#+�
�
)*� /()����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���-
����4
���##�	�.�
� �
'*� �()�0
<
�	4�
���������	�����
�2������
��44�	<
��4���#�
�
�*� ��
��
�����	
���
�#����
�#��
����
���#���
�
�$�4
�����
��#������	��
B�

��)((�

�
����
��
#*�
�

!
�#	�+��	�4�	�
�����
�<�#������
����
#�	
���
���
����	�
�#��
���
�
�
<
�	4�
����	�4��
#�2������
��
C���
�
��#�	
��	����
#�0!)����� )7�	
�
��
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������������#�������
�2�����������
�
4�	<��
��2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*�

�
!
�#	��
	��/44�	<����
�
)*� ��
��44������	���	���#�������#��
����
���#��	����
�#	����
�
<���	��	
��
��	2�

�����#��	���	�#��
�
���	���<
��������
��
����
�������4�����4	����
�
�������
�������44
�����
�	
���
�����#��4
��	���#�����	�#��
�
���	��
�	
�
�
����
����	���
���
���$�	��4��<��$�	
��
����	�������2
�����#*�/#���
�	�#
C�
��
����
��44������	�����	��#�2����4	���
#�0!)�� )��� )7�J�9/'�	
�
��
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	4�
�������������#�������
�2������
��������
�
4�	<��
��2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*�

��
��58!�/��1��+�
�
)*� ��
�9	�������������/���	���$���#����
��4	#���<
�$�����4�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��44������	���$��##
##������
�4�	4	#��������#��4��������
4	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#��������������$��
4�
#
�����	�#�
�������<
��

���
�
�<
�*������#�#��#
C�
���$��
�
����
���	�������4��������
4
���##�	��������	�����
�2������
�4�
#��4��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	4�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��*���

	
	

)�(*� 0/���85���K��������,���
	
4(�	!�&�����	
����%%��	��%��	%(�	�&%�	��	%(�	��H%	���%��� 	
	
/����0�K�)�6��� �0�9��85��8����������0/�����	
	
	
	
	
	

4(�	���%���	�����	&%	*+ ,0	��	 � /�!�/�	

15



16



���������	
��	��
�������������

����������	

������
�


��������������
�

��������������  !""���#$��"�%&���!"!�����'�$��%��"�"!��%�
�

�
��"�(� ���� �����)!�*� %�������� ��$��%��"%� �� %�  ���� ��� "��� ���!"!�����
��$��%��"�"!��%� ����!+��� �����)!�*� "��� $�,�!��"!��� ��� "��� �*����� ����
����!+����$�"�� !��������"�������,������"�����  !""��� ��"!�*�)�����"����
��!%����)���������+��"� �"��!���$����!�*����%!����"!��%-�
�
�
�

�

�..���	����'��'��������	���
�

������
���������������������������	������������	�������������
����
�	��������	�	��������������
�������
��
������ ���� ����� �	� ���� ������� ��	����
	�� ������� ������ 
	�� ����
��
��� �� 
���� � ���� ���� 
�� �	�� ��
�	��������	�������
�����	�	����!�"��� 
�� 
��	�����	� ���������	���#��������
������������	�

����
	�!����
�����	���
����
��
�����������
�
$�� ����	���� �	� 
������� #���
��� "�
��� ��
���� "�� ��� 	"%���	�!� 	


����� ��#������� ���� 
	��	�
��� "	�
��� �	�
���


��� ���� ����

�� ���
�� ��	
���
	����  
���� 	�� ��
�� ������!� �
��� ����
������ ��
������� �	� �� �	���� �	����
���
������� 
����� ��������
���	������������	"����&�
�

•� ��
���������������!��
•� ���������	����
	��������!��
•� '� 
�	��������������
•� �����	
�'� 
�	�����������������������
����������������

�
����
��
����� 
��������	�

���������� ������ 
���	��
��� �	� ( ������"���������	��)�"��	���*+,�������� 
�	��
�����	�����	
�"
	-���	�	���� �����'� 
�	������������������	�

����� 
������
	���� (�	�
�
	�����������)!�
���������	
�����	����������
����	�	�����	����	��
�����������
���� 
��	����
����
��������	����������������
�	�����	���	���������#�
����������
�
	�����	����
��
������*+,�������.	���
	������/�������	
� ��
���������
���� ������"������
������
 ���0+,��������
�	�������
�����1	���	
�������	
���
	����"	�
������� 	
��������
�	��������
�����������	�������	�	������
�
������
���������������"���������	��2�3�������*,40��	�����5��"����	
������	��
�����"��5��6�7�	���	��
"����
�	
������"���	
��	�������
�������������������
����
�
����	
������	��
��������	�������"�
	���5��"���!�
����
������������
��������"���	
�����


����
�
�
���������
����	������
��������������$������
������������
��������	����


�!���	8
�
���	
������
����	����
����
�����	����
��!����
����!�����������������	���������
���
�� ��"�������"	��������	���"	 ����
�
�

� �����/0&�� 1� �	���'#���	�� 	2� �� 3

45� ��'��#��#'���
����'	6��� .������	�� ��.� �������'7� .�8��	�
���� �	�
�'	.#��� '���5�6��� ���'�7� 2'	
� 	������ ����'���.�
5������ ��.� ���'�7� �'	��-� � � ��� ������� ������9��7� 2�'
:�
����'��	5:�'	��1	�157�:�9'
�;�6�
�
2��(�
�� ������ $���
�� '�,��"� ��)���%:� 3��/� ���<��$$�����:� ����$��
���<:�����%:����/�=�6�
�

1717



���������	
��	��
�������������

	22���'��	

�����
�

9	������


���
	���	�5��"����	
������	��
����!��	���"
	-���	�	��������������������	�����	���-�
����	�����
	
���
�����
���������������!������	��	��	��
���	�����
	������������� �����	����
����	�����������
��-
"�	���"
	-���	�	������	�� ��!���������	"
���
�������
�����������	�����
	���
����	���
��
	����5
8
���	
�

�����	���
�����	���
�!������������
������	���� �������5	 ������	
������
�����
��
�������
���
�������
	���
����	�����	��
"����������	��	
�"
	-���	�	�������������
����������	�

�����������	�������
������	�����	��"��
��	���
����	���
���������
���
�	��������	�	����
�������
	��� �����	��� ����
��
��*+,��������������*+,-
������.	���
������"������'� 
�	���������������������	
����
��
����
���������
�������������������
�
�
���
	������"����#�
����
	���
������
�����	�	����!�"�������������������	�

�������
���	����	��������

	����
�������	
��� ��	������	��
����
���������$������� ���!������
�������
���	����	�
"
�
 ��	������8����
	��
.	�����
�

�����������	
������	��������	��
����������	
����
	����	��������������"�����	��
������ ��������
����:�
	


������� ����	���������������
�����
���


�����

�����������������	����
	���������	��;�3�������*,40!�
�
 
���
��������
���	
�������	�	������ ��	����������������	��
�����	�������
	����� ��"��������!������	�
�� ������	��������� ��"��������
 ����������	����������� ��"����
�����
�
	�����	
���������


��
���� �����
��������������<


������� ���	�����	���	��	�"�������8�������� 
����	
�����	
�������
��	
���
	����"	�
��!���
����	
��
����
������
	�����	�
�
	�������������
�	���	 �������������
����
�
	22���'��	

�����
�
�������
�������������
���������� 
�����8��������
��������������	
�	"%���
	������
 ��������	����	����
���
��������	"%���
	����������� 
������ ��"�����	��
����������
����:�����������
��������
�
�����
��
����
���
	�������������"���������	����������
����	��
�����
	�������������
�
	����
�
	����
	����
���
	


������� ���	������	�	"��
���������	
������
�����	��	���

�����������	�������
	�!�"�������
	��	�
���
����


���
	��	�������
�������
����
������
���
 ���
��	������	����
���5��"���&�
�
������-3(� ������
���	������	�
����(4���������������	�����#�
�
������'$�)���3�������������	���������
	���	��'$��
����������������������	�������
���
�		��	
��
��


������� ������� 
�	���������

����������
��	�	����
��
��������
�����������*�	
�����'$��=������
	���*,44���������
����8������,�+����������
�	�� �����
���	����	������������'$��
��������	��!����������	���	�����
���	���������������������
������
���<�
�
	������
	���������
�����	��������
�������=������
	�������	��
����	�����������
��"�
����!�����	�����
	���������
	�������/�������
��%��������������,�+���������:��������
����
���
�����
���
��	��������
��%��������������4�*������������������
���������	�(�=*,4,�1	�4>�����1	�42)���������	�
'� 
�	������������
������
���
	��!��	�������
�����#�
���������������
��������#�	�����	��	��������
����
��
��������
�

�����;-�/(� ����������	����
	��5�����������"�����������	�����

��������"�
��������
�����

������
	��
���<���)����	��������

�������
 ���
������������!�
������
�������������
��������������� ��"����4,�����������
������	���	�����
����*,,+������	��"	����	����������
���	��	�"����������<���)����	���
��������
�����
����������	�!�"����������
�����

�������
 ���
	���������������	���	����
��
�����;����
	�������0���
����
������
�����+������!��
���4+����
	�������;?���
�����
����4@2@���5	������
�������������	�������������	���
 ���
���	�!��	���
 
������!�	���	���		�
���������
�����������


���
	������
 ����
���"�����	������	�5��"����
 ��"������
�

�����;-��(� ������	�	�������
�������������
����������������������
�����
����������	������	����
������	��������
	��"��
�!�	����%	
�
���������	����������	
�������	�	�����
�����
���
��	�����"������
����
������$���	�����	��"��������� 	
��	�����������������"	��������������������	����	����"���	�
���	��	�������������������-	

�
�	��������������-�����
���	�������
��!������	���� �������
����������

�		�
��!�
�����
���������������		���	���������	����������	����
������������������	��
����	������	���-
��������������������������	�����	���

��������"	���	���	����
 �����������������������������
�����������
���"���

�
����
�

�����;-�=(� <


�����	

���
�����������������	������
	�����	��)����������	������!������� ������������
�	
������
���� �������
	����!��	�����
����
�������������������	�������	��
"����
�������	�

����
	���	
�
����	����!��������	���	�
�
	��!��� ��"����	"��
����
�	�������	����������$������
������	
���	
�
���������
�����
����	����"���	��������*+,��������
�	����������	�)���	��!������	�� 
����������"����
	���������
���������������������	
���
���������	��������� ���������	��
�
	�����
���	�
��
������


����"	 ���
�

�	��9������	�'��	

��.���	��
�

1818



���������	
��	��
�������������

�

�..���	����'��'��������	���
�
�	�����������	�	�
��� -������
������� ��"%���� �	�������	�	�
���� 

����� �����
	�� 
��*,,?A,@� �=	��������
9����������������
	�����	��� ��"�����

������"����� 
	������	�
�
	�����������	���#�����!��	����	�
���
	
�������	�	�
�����
��


�����������
	�����	�"�����������
�
�9������	�'��	

��.���	��
�
���	��
�
	���	�������
����������8��������	����
���
	����	����"���������	��������	�������
	���
�
�

�

�..���	����'��'��������	���
�

��������
����������	�

������
����	
������	������
���
���7����=��
������
�
9������������������
	������
 ���
�	�������B��������5�%	�!�����5��	���	���!����	��C
��	�&�
�
6���	�����
����	���
���	����	��
��
���	"%���
	���	���������
���
	��
	�������
���	������5�����9�����
��-�
��
������������	����������	��"�����	�����
 �����������
�������������
������������	���������
�������
�����������
��
�������������	
���
	����������6�������������
�	���		�
��������
�����������������������
���
	��

��	�������
���
��
�����	���������
���
���	������	��
����
	���� ��	������
	������	�����
����� ���	��
"���������������������$��������������"�������	��������8����
 �����������	���������
����"%�����	�
��
	����������
�����	�����	��"������
���	������	�
������������������!�������
���	��8
��
���
���	��	���
	����6���	�)����	����	��	��������������"
�!������
	������������������	��
�
	���������
����
������
 ���
�����	���������������������
�������	����"���
��
���	����
����
�������
	���� ��	������
����	������$
�	�-�
������	��	���
	��
���������������"
���	����"���	 ����	��������	���
	��	���
�������
��
	���������
�������
����	�����	��"������	"�����
����������
������������������"�
���������
�����������
�	�5�����9������$��
����������
�������������������	�"�
������������������	����"
����	 �����"������
'�
	��������1	�
���	��	�����	���������7	���
	�������������������������
����	����"�
��
����
����	����
�����
�������	
�������� ��	�������
�����������"�
��
��������
���!����

	��
���������	������������"
���	����
�	���� ���
���� 
�����
��������$���������������	���
	��
��
����	
�
�������	�������	���������������
����	�
�
����"����������	��
"���
���������������	���	�����������
�����������
�������������	���
��	������

��������	��	��
��������������
	��	
��������	�������"�����������	���
������	"�
���
	����	���	���������
	��������
���
�	���� ��	������������������"������"������	
�����'�
	��������1	�
���
	��>��	������	����
��������
���
	������������
	���"����
�����
�������
����	
���
���������������
�������������
�
	�����
��
�
���

������
����	
��������	�������
�
�	��9������	�'��	

��.���	��

� ����=��&�.� 1� ��5� �'�9�8�� ��.� '��	'.�� ����'�� 2	'�
9�'�2	'.�9�'�� �	#����-� ����#.���� '��	���	'���:�
�	���'8���	�� '		
�:� ���22� 	22����:� �.#����	�� ������:�
���'�9�'		
���.��>9�6���	���������	����6���
�
6�'��	2�
�9�� �#6���� �	� 8��5��'��2����-� � ��� ���.� ��� 2�'� �'��� ����:�
'	�9�'5��:�9�'�2	'.�9�'�:��
�

2��(�
�%������$���
��
��<�6����:�#$$����)�����:��)�����:�9��������
�

� ����;33&2� 1� '������	�� 	2� �>������� 
	6���� 9	
�� ?5��9�
��
�	'�'7�#���2	'���7��'�@�������	

	.���	���������'7�
�	� 	��#����	�� 	2� .5�������� ��'
����.� 67� ���'	8����
.
�&������&2�A�.
�&������&2-� � ����
�'�9�2�'
:�#��	��6��9	�:�
'	��1	�157�:�9'
�0#��
�

2��(�
��.!�%�����$�������.�%!*���"��!�:�;����%� ��5��<:�5����%"���
�

1919



2020



 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer 
 
 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE                

DATE: 30 JANUARY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: APPEALS 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected                                                                   
Countywide  

Purpose 
To note the progress in respect of the following appeals. 

Key Decision 
This is not a key decision  

Recommendation 
That the report be noted 

APPEALS DETERMINED 
 

Application No. N113184/F  

• The appeal was received on 5 July 2012 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal was brought by the owner and/or occupier 
• The site is located at Chapel Cottage, Main Street, Wellington, Herefordshire, HR4 8AX 
• The application dated 2 November 2011 was refused on 3 January 2012 
• The development proposed was a replacement dwelling. 
• The main issues were: 

• Whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the 
Wellington Conservation Area; 

• The effect of the proposal on the living conditions of the occupiers of the proposed 
dwelling, with particular regard to privacy; 

• The implications of the proposal on bats, a protected species, and; 
• The effect of the proposed parking arrangements on Highway Safety. 

 

Decision: 
The application was refused, under delegated powers, on 3 January 2012. 
The appeal was dismissed on 10 December 2012. 
An application for the award of costs, made by the Council against the appellant, was granted. 

 

Case Officer:  Mr C Brace on 01432 261947 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

21



Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer 
 
 

Application No. S120740/F  

• The appeal was received on 18 October 2012 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

grant of planning permission subject to conditions 
• The appeal was brought by Mr F Airey 
• The site is located at Walwyn Court, Much Marcle, Herefordshire, HR8 2LY 
• The application dated 13 March 2012 was approved on 9 May 2012 and planning permission was 

granted subject to conditions. 
• The development proposed was a revised proposal to demolish an existing outbuilding and 

replace with annex accomodation, garage and boiler room 
• The main issues were: 

• Whether the occupation of the annex as a separate dwelling would be contrary to the 
policies for control of development in Much Marcle; 

• Whether occupation of the annex and Walwyn Court as separate dwellings would result in 
an unacceptable loss in amenity for their occupiers; and 

• Whether the use of the access by traffic generated by the occupation of the annex and 
Walwyn Court would result in an unacceptable reduction in Highway Safety. 

 

Decision: 
The application was approved with conditions, under delegated powers, on 9 May 2012. 
The appeal was dismissed on 3 January 2013. 
 

Case Officer:  Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
 
 
 
Application No. S121246/F  

• The appeal was received on 30 August 2012 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal was brought by Mr F Airey 
• The site is located at Wallwyn Court, Much Marcle, Ledbury, Herefordshire, HR8 2LY 
• The application was refused on 20 June 2012 
• Removal of Condition 4 of Planning Permission DMS112013/F to allow house and barn to be 

treated as separately owned units. 
• The main issues were: 

• Whether the occupation of the annex as a separate dwelling would be contrary to the 
policies for control of development in Much Marcle; 

• Whether occupation of the annex and Walwyn Court as separate dwellings would result in 
an unacceptable loss in amenity for their occupiers; and 

• Whether the use of the access by traffic generated by the occupation of the annex and 
Walwyn Court would result in an unacceptable reduction in Highway Safety. 

 

Decision: 
The application was refused, under delegated powers, on 20 June 2012. 
The appeal was dismissed on 3 January 2013. 
 

Case Officer:  Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer 
 
 

Application No. N111899/O  

• The appeal was received on 2 July 2012 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal was brought by Ms Nikki Harrison 
• The site is located at Porthouse Farm, Tenbury Road, Bromyard, Herefordshire 
• The application dated, was refused on 4 April 2012 
• The development proposed was An outline application for the erection of up to 127 dwellings, 

comprising 83 open market and 44 affordable units, wither all matters except access reserved for 
future determination 

• The main issue is whether the implementation and maintenance of noise attenuation measures 
can be secured; and in the event that they could be secured whether future residents of the 
proposed development would be affected by an unacceptable level of night time noise nuisance 
arising from the movement of stillages in the open yard of the adjoining Polytec site. 

 
NB: Although the appeal was originally to take place under the Written Representations procedure, 
the Inspector, on an accompanied site visit which took place on 17 October 2012, decided that the 
issue of Noise would best be dealt with by way of a separate Hearing. The Hearing took place on 4 
December 2012. 
 
Decision: 
The application was refused, contrary to Officer recommendation, on 4 April 2012. 
The appeal was dismissed on 3 January 2013. 
An application for the award of costs (Partial), made by the appellant against the Council, was 
allowed. 
 

Case Officer:  Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
 
 
If members wish to see the full text of decision letters copies can be provided. 

23



24



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 30 JANUARY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

N123067/F -  ERECTION OF TWO STOREY  
DWELLINGHOUSE AT LAND AT THE COACH HOUSE, OLD 
CHURCH ROAD, COLWALL, MALVERN 
 
For: Mr Beard per Architype, Upper Twyford, Twyford, 
Hereford, Herefordshire HR2 8AD 
 

WEBSITE 
LINK: 

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/58286.aspx?ID=123067&NoSearch=True 
 

 
Date Received: 30 October 2012 Ward: Hope End              Grid Ref: 375350,242937 
Expiry Date: 10 January 2013  
Local Members: Councillors CNH Attwood and AW Johnson  
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application site is located on to the north of Old Church Road and west of the Mathon 

Road within the Parish of Colwall. The site which has an area of some 0.28 hectares forms 
part of the current garden area of a dwellinghouse known as ‘The Coach House’. Vehicular 
access to the site is via an existing driveway from Old Church Road. The site is set back in 
excess of 65 metres from the public highway. 

 
1.2 Whilst the site appears flat there is a subtle difference in ground level with the land sloping 

gradually downwards from north to south by some 4 metres. . Across the site at its northern 
end a stream runs. It crosses the site in an east to west direction. There is currently a culvert 
within this stream allowing a crossing. The site forms part of a garden with mature trees. There 
are significant trees upon the site most of which are concentrated around its boundaries.  

 
1.3 The aforementioned ‘The Coach House’ is located to the west of the application site. To the 

east is a bungalow known as ‘Acrefield’, to the north is a two storey property known as 
‘Whitegates’ and to the south-west is the original substantial Victorian house known as 
‘Burleigh’ to which ‘The Coach House’ (now a dwellinghouse) was associated. None of these 
buildings are nationally listed as being of architectural or historic merit, although it is 
considered that ‘Burleigh’ is of local interest. The application site was formerly a field that was 
incorporated into a garden and therefore lies outside the original Victorian garden boundary of 
‘Burleigh’. 

 
1.4 The site lies within the Colwall Stone / Upper Colwall Conservation Area and the Malvern Hills 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  
 
1.5 The proposal is to erect a two-storey dwellinghouse. It is intended that the applicant and his 

wife, who currently reside in ‘The Old Coach House’ would move into the property. The 
proposed house has been designed for the specific functional needs of the applicant and his 
wife, who suffers from a potentially chronic auto immune condition which is proving difficult to 
treat, and to achieve high sustainability credentials (i.e. minimising energy use). 

AGENDA ITEM 7

25



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

 
1.6 The proposed house three bedroomed house would be sited to the north of the site, at a low 

point, parallel with the northern boundary and some 9 metres from that boundary. The house 
would be 21.5 to 32 metres from the eastern boundary. The set back from Old Church Road 
would be approximately 100 metres.  

 
1.7 The house at ground floor level would have a width of 11.9 metres and a depth ranging from 

13.3 metres to 17.3 metres. The first floor would be set back from the front elevation of the 
ground floor by some 5 metres. The ground floor roof not accommodating the first floor would 
provide a terrace and a “green roof”. Attached to the eastern elevation at ground floor level is a 
car port.  

 
1.8 The house is in essence a contemporary box. Its shape has been developed to a sophisticated 

level using sloping walls. Its overall height would be 7 metres. The main front façade has 
substantial glazing whilst the rear (northern) elevation has no openings (i.e. windows or doors) 
proposed. The side / flank elevations have limited windows. 

 
1.9 The materials are of interest with the main two storey element having European chestnut 

cladding (diagonal open boarding) to the sides and a standing seam metal (i.e. zinc) roof and 
rear elevation. The frontage projection and car port would be rendered. 

 
1.10 It is proposed to replace the existing culvert with a clear span bridge. This would provide the 

vehicular access route off the existing driveway. The driveway would have a permeable 
surface. 

 
1.11 There would be a minor diversion of an existing swale to the rear of the proposed 

dwellinghouse. 
 
1.12 Of the numerous trees upon the site only two ornamental silver birches would be removed. A 

submitted arboricultural assessment grades these trees as being of low quality. A detailed 
landscaping scheme has been submitted which enhances screening along the northern 
boundary. 

 
1.13 The intention is that the building would be constructed such that it would meet Passivhaus 

standards in terms of its sustainability credentials. 
  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 Central Government advice:  
 

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) 
 
2.2 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007: 

  

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development Requirements 
S3 - Housing 
S6 - Transport 
S7 - Natural and Historic Environment 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land & Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR8 - Culverting 
DR14 - Lighting 
H7 - Housing in the Countryside Outside Settlements 

26



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

 
2.3 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Councils website by using the following link:- 
 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 

Application Site 
 
3.1   MH/90/0148  Outline application for the erection of two dwellings. Refused. 
 
 Adjoining Coach House 
 
3.2 MH/90/132  Conversion of Coach House to dwelling.  Approved. 
 
3.3    NE/2001/0728/F Conversion of offices to residential use.   Approved 22.6.2001. 
 
3.4    NE/2002/2299/F Demolition of storage building and formation of extension to provide 

sitting room with bedroom over.    Approved 26.9.2002. 
 
3.5  NE2003/0050/F New timber garage.      Approved 26.3.2003. 
 
3.6  DCNE/2005/2031/F Proposed conservatory.     Approved 1.8.2005. 
 
3.7 N113003/FH & Two storey extension to dwelling.    Approved 16.12.2011. 

N113004/C 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
 Statutory Consultees 
 
 None. 
 
 Internal Consultees 
 
4.1 Conservation Manager (Historic Buildings): Supports the proposal and is of the view that the 

proposal would not only preserve the existing conservation area but would enhance it 
providing a quality building that responds to its setting. 

 
4.2 Conservation Manager (Landscape): Does not object to the proposed development subject to 

an appropriate planning condition.  The submitted landscaping scheme is considered to be 
acceptable. 

 
4.3 Conservation Manager (Ecology): No objections subject to an appropriate planning condition. 
 
4.4 The Transportation Manager: No objections. 
 

LA1 - Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
LA5 - Protection of Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
LA6 - Landscaping Schemes 
NC1 - Biodiversity and Development 
NC6 - Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Habitats 
NC7 - Compensation for Loss of Biodiversity 
HBA6 - New Development in Conservation Areas 

27



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

4.5 The Land Drainage Adviser (Amey) has no objections to the proposal but notes that if planning 
permission were to be granted a separate Land Drainage Consent would be required. 

 
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Colwall Parish Council state:- 
 

“Colwall Parish Council raises strong objections to this proposed development.  
 

The following comments are to be submitted to Herefordshire Council for consideration - 
In summary this is a new dwelling in the Malvern Hills AONB which is outside the settlement 
boundary of the Parish of Colwall. 

 
 One additional “windfall” dwelling has already been developed on the site, by the applicant – in 

the conversion of the Old Coach House to a residential dwelling, and the Parish Council is 
opposed to another new dwelling outside the Parish Settlement Boundary.  

 
 The Parish Council are of the opinion the application contravenes H4 of the UDP which states 

the provision of housing in the main villages will be restricted to sites within the identified 
settlement boundary. 

 
LA1 Of the UDP – the development is not of greater national interest than the purpose of the 
AONB, and it is not the case that no alternative sites are available. 

 
HBA6 – Development within the conservation area will not be permitted unless it preserves or 
enhances its character or appearance. “ 

 
5.2 Councillor Attwood (Hope End Ward) states:- 
 

“The application has my support.  The building appears to be well designed, environmentally 
appropriate and non-intrusive. 

 
Colwall Parish Council has quite logically objected that it is outside the Settlement Boundary, a 
principle they sensibly adhere to. 

 
However, in this particular instance, it can be seen from the site map (and from the site visit), 
that the boundary contains an idiosyncratic diversion from its general line and excludes the 
plot which is the subject of this application.  There appears to be no rhyme or reason for this 
oddity. 

 
It would seem eccentric for the unexplained and apparently arbitrary diversion of the 
Settlement Boundary to prohibit this application.” 

 
5.3 The occupiers of three neighbouring properties (i.e. ‘Grovesend’, ‘Whitegates’ and ‘Burleigh’) 

object to the proposed development on the following summarised grounds:- 
 

- The proposed development lies outside of the defined settlement / village boundary of 
Colwall. 

 
- The design of the building in a conservation area is unsympathetic to the Victorian and 

Arcadian character of the area. 
 
- The issue of flooding does not appear to have been addressed by the agent. 
 
- The access onto Old Church Road is poor and currently used by The Coach House and 

Burleigh. The proposal would increase use of this unsafe access. 

28



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

- There has been incremental development upon the land within the applicant’s ownership. 
 
- The proposal would reduce the garden area associated with The Coach House. 
 
- Concern as to siting so close to the boundary with ‘Whitegates’. 
 
- The proposed development lies within the Malvern Hills AONB and fails to preserve its 

special qualities and distinctive character of the villagescape including large gardens, low 
densities or the sense of tranquillity that is to be protected. It is felt the proposal 
compromises the integrity of the settled landscape. 

 
- The development potentially affects many types of views – short and long distance – within 

and to / from AONB. 
 
- This feels like a significant overdevelopment and garden grab of The Old Coach House. 
 
- Loss of mature trees. 
 

5.4  Notwithstanding the above objections, the occupiers of ‘Whitegates’ state that if planning 
permission were to be granted they would wish:- 

 
- Comprehensive landscaping to be secured between the proposed house and the northern 

boundary. 
- No new windows to be inserted in the rear (north) elevation. 
- No subsequent extensions to the building. 

 
5.5 Notwithstanding the above objections, the occupiers of ‘Grovesend’ state that if planning 

permission were to be granted they would wish:- 
 

- The property to have some form of concealing screening. 
- Limited windows towards their property. 
- Some form of binding contractual obligation for any flooding damage that may be caused by 

the development. 
- Our garden wall which adjoins the Coach House to be restored to its original height as 

following the flood damage in 2007 it was rebuilt to a lower level at the informal request of 
the owners of The Coach House. 

  
5.6 One letter of support has been received from the occupiers of ‘Shires Lodge’ on the following 

grounds:- 
 

- Welcome the development of sustainable building methods as crucial to the survival and 
welfare of us all in a local and global context. 

- The building appears attractive with clean lines. 
- Would not be visible from the road. 
- Planted roof is welcomed. 
- Additional traffic would not be significant. 

 
5.7 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 

link:- 
 www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/searchplanningapplications.aspx 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
 www.herefordshire.gov.uk/community_and_living/consumer_advice/41840.asp 
 
 
 

29



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
 Principle 
 
6.1 Although the application abuts the settlement boundary (i.e. village envelope) of Colwall, it lies 

outside of the settlement boundary. As such, the proposal to build a new dwellinghouse is 
contrary to policy H7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. The issue then 
arises as to whether there are any other material planning considerations that indicate that the 
proposal is acceptable.  

 
6.2 As Members will be aware the Council has a shortfall in its five year housing land supply and 

fails to meet the enhanced requirements in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
for a 5% oversupply. This is a significant material planning considerations and means that the 
Local Planning Authority should release appropriate sites for housing development even if they 
lie outside of the defined town and rural settlement boundaries. 

 
6.3 Suitable sites for release are likely to be ones which:- 
 

• fall at locations that currently have settlement status within the UDP; and 

• are located adjacent to the existing settlement boundary. 
 
6.4 In this particular case, Colwall has the status of a main village / settlement in Herefordshire 

Unitary Development Plan 2007. In terms of the context of Herefordshire, it is considered that 
Colwall is a highly sustainable settlement having a range of facilities (e.g. retail shops, 
community facilities, employment land) and a railway station. 

 
6.5 Furthermore the application site directly abuts the settlement boundary (see plan attached in 

annex to this report).  In fact, when one examines the line of the settlement boundary it almost 
appears as an anomaly that this land was excluded. The land is already in a residential use. 

 
6.6 As such the site is considered suitable for the erection of a dwellinghouse. 
 
6.7 Notwithstanding the above, the detail of the proposal requires careful consideration. 
 

Pattern of Development 
 
6.8 When one analyses the location and site plan, the provision of a building on this site would be 

consistent with the grain of the immediate area. It follows the random and scattered siting of 
other dwellings in the vicinity, whilst providing a large garden for the proposed dwelling and a 
generous garden for the retained Coach House. 

 
Siting 

 
6.9 The precise siting of the proposed house has been very careful chosen having had full regard 

to the physical characteristics of the site. The site is characterised by a lawned area that is 
surrounded by mature trees with a few trees within it. The location of the proposed house has 
been very carefully selected to having regard to:- 

 
- retaining the quality trees upon the site and ensuring that they are not prejudiced in the long 

term. In fact only two silver birch trees would be felled. All trees upon the site have been the 
subject of a full tree survey including a qualitative assessment. The two silver birches to be 
felled were considered to be of a low quality value. 

- Providing for solar gain to the proposed house 
- Respecting the pattern / grain of development in the area and ensuring generous plot sizes 

for both the retained ‘Coach House’ and  the proposed new house. 

30



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

- Providing access to the site by way of a logical split off the existing driveway; and 
- A desire to site the building at a low level upon the site thus keeping the building height low. 
 
It is considered the siting of the proposed house to be both logical and appropriate. 

 
Design & Sustainability Credentials 

 
6.10 The design of the building is overtly and unashamedly contemporary. This approach is 

welcomed and is considered to be preferable to a pastiche approach. It is considered that a 
pastiche may compete with The Coach House and the Victorian dwelling known as ‘Burleigh’.  

 
6.11 Whilst in essence the design is a box, its shape has been developed further to a much more 

sophisticated level using sloping walls, different treatments for the larger and smaller boxes in 
terms of cladding, the use of a green system over the projecting ground floor which surrounds 
the terrace and the angles that help to minimise the impact of the large amount of glazing. On 
a more detailed level the timber cladding has been carefully thought out to address potential 
problems at the junction with windows and the roof plus the relationship with the ground level. 
They all, in the opinion of the Conservation Manager (Historic Buildings), “show a crispness of 
form that is considered, to lift the proposal out of the realms of being merely put together and 
into architecture.” 

 
Though the scheme is dramatically different to its neighbours in style, it is considered to 
respond appropriately to the site and its surroundings, using appropriate materials that should 
mature well. It does exhibit a high quality of design that is considered to be appropriate to the 
area. 

 
6.12 The proposal has clearly been designed from the outset with regard to achieving a building 

with genuine sustainability credentials. The proposal is to construct a house that would meet 
Passivhaus standards (http://www.passivhaus.org.uk/ and http://www.passiv.de/en/index.php.  
This is considered the highest and best of the numerous standards as its approach is to 
design buildings that minimise energy consumption (i.e. heating of less than 15 kilowatt hours 
per m2 per year compared to most new dwellinghouses that tend to consume 100 kw (m2/a). In 
my experience such buildings typically involve:- 

 
- The building facing south or within 15 degrees of south. 
- Very high levels of insulation. 
- Extremely high performance windows with insulated frames. 
- Airtight building fabric. 
- Thermal bridge free construction. 
- A mechanical heat recovery system with highly efficient heat recovery. 

 
6.13 Therefore the proposed house is not only considered to be excellent in terms of its aesthetics 

but also its sustainability credentials. As such, it is considered that the design is innovative, 
original and responds to the challenges of the time. The proposal is considered to represent 
excellent architecture that may assist in helping to raise the standard of design in the area. 

 
6.14 It is also worth noting that paragraph 65 of the NPPF specifically states that “Local planning 

authorities should not refuse planning permission for buildings or infrastructure which promote 
high levels of sustainability because of concerns about incompatibility with the existing 
townscape, if those concerns have been mitigated by good design (unless the concern relates 
to a designated heritage asset and the impact would cause material harm to the asset or its 
setting which is not outweighed by the proposal’s economic, social and environmental 
benefits).” 

 
 
 

31



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

Impact upon character and appearance of Conservation Area 
 
6.15 The Colwall Conservation Area is defined by the villas and their garden areas. Old Church 

Road is the more rural part of the area with less formal gardens than Walwyn Road although 
there are some similarities between the two.  

 
6.16 The conservation area is somewhat unusual in that there are few listed buildings and its 

character derives primarily from the gardens and mature garden settings. Whilst there are 
some attractive villas, such a ‘Burleigh’, there are some residential dwellings of no 
architectural merit.   Whilst the area has developed gradually it saw most of its development in 
the twentieth century. 

 
6.17 In this case the garden area of The Coach House (i.e. the application site), is an area of 

private open space which is not readily visible and apparent from public vantage points (i.e. 
public highway and public rights of way). As such, limited development upon it would not harm 
the visual appearance of the conservation area. The resultant density and generous garden 
areas that would be afforded to both the retained Coach House (which has three bedrooms 
and a home office that could be used as a fourth bedroom) and the proposed house would 
respect the character of the conservation area. Interestingly, the Local Planning Authority was 
unsuccessful at an appeal in resisting the development of a smaller garden area within the 
conservation area that was visible from the pubic highway at ‘Holmleigh’ Old Church Road 
(reference DCNE2007/1020/F). 

 
6.18 Additionally and significantly, it is considered that the proposed house is of a scale and design 

that provides a clear hierarchy to the wider historic site comprising the original Victorian villa 
(‘Burleigh’) and the Coach House. 

 
6.19 Furthermore the Conservation Manager considers that the proposed development not only 

preserves the existing conservation area but would enhance it by providing a quality building 
that responds positively to its setting, thus complying with policy HBA6 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan 2007. 

 
Impact upon landscape, trees & landscaping 

 
6.20 Colwall is located within the Malvern Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. It is considered 

that the proposed development would not be readily visible from pubic vantage points. 
 
6.21 The trees upon the site are protected by both an Area Tree Preservation Order (TPO-289/A1) 

and by virtue of being within the Conservation Area. The proposed scheme respects the 
existing trees by ensuring that those trees that are both worthy and capable of retention are 
retained.  

 
6.22 In addition, a landscaping scheme has been submitted that includes enhanced planting 

between the rear elevation of the proposed house and the northern boundary of the site. 
 
6.23 These proposals are welcomed to replace the two trees that are to be felled and to continue 

the important green infrastructure around the boundary of the site. The proposals include tall, 
hardy evergreen species to the back of the planting bed, which will form a substantial screen 
with the neighbouring property to the north known as ‘Whitegates’. The front of the bed would 
include smaller ground cover plants with low maintenance and suitable to the garden setting. A 
new beech hedge would clearly define the western garden boundary with ‘The Coach House’. 

 
6.24 Therefore it is concluded that the proposal would safeguard the landscape and not have any 

detrimental impact upon the landscape of the Malvern Hills Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty. 

 

32



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

Bio-diversity / Ecology 
 
6.25 The Conservation Manager (Ecology) has no objections to the proposal. Furthermore the 

replacement of the existing culvert with a bridge is welcomed. From a bio-diversity perspective 
this is invariably preferred as it allows light to the water course and ensures the free flow of 
water. Culverts block light and can become obstructed. 

 
6.26 A recommended condition would secure a habitat enhancement scheme. 
 

Flooding 
 
6.27 The site is not within an area that the Environment Agency identifies as being liable to flood. 

That does not mean that the site is not liable to flood from say surface water. It is understood 
that in the 22 years that the applicant has lived on or adjoining the site, the water / storm 
drained became blocked once (July 2007) after extreme weather conditions at the point where 
it enters the culvert near the Coach House resulting in the water over spilling the bank and 
running across to the north-west part of the existing garden.  

 
6.28 It is understood that on the western boundary of the curtilage of the Coach House there was a 

tall wall with on a small pipe through it (in line with the swale) which was blocked and therefore 
was unable to take the volume of water, which built up. Eventually the wall toppled over (it is 
understood that the wall was concrete with metal in it which had become rusty and the 
concrete had started to break away before the incident) and the water passed onto the land of 
‘Grovesend’. Significantly, it is understood that at no time did the retained water approach the 
site of the proposed house.  

 
6.29 It is understood that subsequently the wall was rebuilt by the owners of ‘Grovesend’ and a 

larger opening left at the bottom of this wall by the swale (75cm wide and 25 cm deep) to allow 
water in extreme weather conditions to run freely. 

 
6.30 In addition, it is understood that a wire barrier was erected in the water course to catch any 

twigs/leaves/rubbish before they reach the culvert pipe entrance.  When the proposed bridge 
is built for accessing the new house (in place of the culvert near our Eastern boundary) it is 
intended to provide a further wire barrier in the water course as when it runs quickly after 
heavy rain rubbish is carried down from other gardens. 

 
6.31 As this was a single incident in 22 years, and changes have been made subsequently, it is not 

considered that  the garden is subject to flooding and there does not appear to have been any 
incident in the area proposed for the new house. It is understood that 2012 has been the 
wettest for many years and Officers are not aware of any flooding of the application site. 

 
6.32 Members are assured that the application has been assessed by the Council’s Land Drainage 

Advisor who raises no objections. Furthermore even if planning permission were to be granted 
the applicant would need to obtain a separate Land drainage consent from the Lead Local 
Flood Authority (Herefordshire Council – Agents Amey) who would assess in detail the matter 
of flood risk management and who would need to be satisfied that there is no adverse affect 
on flow and / or capacity. 

 
Transportation 

 
6.33 It is considered that the local highway network has sufficient capacity to cope with the 

additional 6-8 vehicular movements a day that the proposed development is likely to generate. 
 

6.34 The existing vehicular access and highway network is considered to be of a standard that the 
proposed development would not prejudice highway safety.  The off-site parking provision 

33



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

accords with adopted standards. Colwall is considered to be a sustainable location with a 
range of facilities and a railway station. 

 
Impact upon neighbouring residential properties 

 
6.35 As Members are aware the planning system does not entitle one to a view. The distance 

between the proposed house itself and the physical dwellinghouses at ‘Burleigh’, ‘Grovesend’ 
and ‘Whitegates’ are some 75 metres, 90 metres and 30 metres respectively. Given the limited 
height of the proposal and the significant distances to neighbouring properties it is considered 
that they would not suffer any undue loss of daylight and / or sunlight. Similarly a  distance of 
21 metres from habitable room window to habitable room window is significantly exceeded. As 
such, it is considered that there would not be any undue loss of privacy to neighbouring 
dwellinghouses. 

 
6.36 Furthermore the privacy distance of 21 metres to the immediate private (normally rear) garden 

/ patio areas (normally the 3-5 metres to the rear of a dwellinghouse) of neighbouring 
dwellings is exceeded and as a consequence it is considered that there would be no undue 
loss of privacy to neighbouring garden areas. 

 
6.37 The perceived physical massing affect of the rear elevation upon the occupiers of ‘Whitegates’ 

would be lessened by the proposed planting in the intervening gap of  9 metres between the 
rear elevation of the proposed house and the northern boundary of the application site. This 
would lessen the impact from the garden of the neighbouring property. The impact from the 
‘Whitegates’ house itself would be negligible given the distance involved (some 30 metres) 
and the fact that ‘Whitegates’ itself is sited on materially higher ground (estimated as at least 2 
metres).  

 
6.38 Therefore it is considered that the proposed development would not have any adverse impact 

upon the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellinghouses. 
 

Conclusion 
 
6.39 Therefore whilst the proposal is contrary to the provisions of the Development Plan in that it 

would provide a new house outside of the existing settlement boundary, in this instance it is 
considered that planning permission should be granted as:- 

 
a) Herefordshire Council has a shortfall in its 5 year housing land supply plus 5%. 

b) The site immediately abuts the settlement boundary of Colwall which is a main village and 
considered to be sustainable. 

c) The design of the building is outstanding in terms of both its architecture and sustainability 
credentials. 

d) The proposal would enhance the Conservation Area. 

e) The proposal would not harm the landscape which hereabouts is designated as an Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

f) In all other respects the proposal is considered to be acceptable in planning terms. 

6.40 The recommendation is also made in the context of the National Planning Policy Framework 
which advances a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

 
 
 

34



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before 20 February 2014. 

 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) (b) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and to reflect the decision of the Local Planning 
Authority on 4 March 2009 to suspend (effective from 1 April 2009) the requirements 
of the Local Planning Authority's 'Planning Obligations' Supplementary Planning 
Document (February 2008) in relation to all employment developments falling within 
Classes B1, B2, and B8 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
(Amendment) (England) Order 2005, the employment element of any mixed use 
development and residential developments of five dwellings or less. 
  

2. Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted the following matters 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their written approval:- 
 
▪ A full written schedule (including colour finishes) of all external materials 
(including doors, rainwater goods and windows. 
 
▪ Written details and samples of the surfacing material to the driveway. 
 
▪ Full details of all external lighting (if any. 
 
▪ Full details of the "green roof". 
 
▪ Written details of the colour of the render and paint colour (if any) to the flue. 
 
The development shall not commence until the Local Planning Authority has given 
such written approval. The development shall be carried out in full accordance with 
the approved details and thereafter maintained as such. 
 
Reason To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in accordance with 
Policies DR1, LA1 and HBA6 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 as amended, including the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment( (No.2) (England) Order 
2008 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) 
no development normally permitted by Classes A, B. C, D, E, F and G of Part 1 and 
Classes A and C of Part 2 of Schedule 2 of Article 3 of the General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 shall be carried out without the express consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reasons: 
a) To safeguard the architectural integrity of the scheme and to safeguard the 
character and appearance of the area which  hereabouts is designated as an Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and a Conservation Area, in accordance with Policies 
LA1, HBA6 and DR1 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 
b) To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of the dwellinghouse to the north 
known as 'Whitegates' in accordance with Policy DR2 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan 2007. 
 
 

35



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

4. Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted all existing trees 
shown to be retained upon the approved drawings shall be protected by fencing of 
in accordance with the advice contained within BS5837:2012. Once these protective 
measures have been erected but prior to commencement of the development a 
suitably qualified arboricultural consultant appointed by the developer shall inspect 
the site and write to the Local Planning Authority to confirm that the protective 
measures are in-situ. Upon confirmation of receipt of that letter by the Local 
Planning Authority the development may commence but the tree protection 
measures must remain in-situ until completion of the development. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the trees upon the site that are of amenity value in 
accordance with Policy LA5 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 

5. Other than any external lighting permitted pursuant to condition 2 above, no further 
external shall be installed upon the site, including the external elevations of the 
building, without the express consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the character of the Malvern Hills Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty in accordance with Policies LA1 and DR14 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 

6. The car port hereby permitted shall be permanently kept available for the parking of 
two private motor vehicles. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure that the site is dominated 
by the parking of private motor vehicles thus ensuring that the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and Malvern 
Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty is not adversely affected, in accordance 
with Policies T11, LA1 and HBA6 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
2007. 
 

7. All planting in the approved details of landscaping (i.e. Landscaping Proposals - 
Drawing number CHC 001 (Scale 1:200) received 10 January 2013) shall be carried 
out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the first occupation of the 
dwellinghouse hereby permitted or completion of the development (whichever is 
the sooner). Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced with others of similar size and species unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily integrated into the 
landscape and to soften the rear (north) elevation of the dwellinghouse when 
viewed from the garden of 'Whitegates' to the north, in accordance with Policies 
LA1 and LA6 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 

8. Prior to commencement of works on site, evidence that the proposed dwelling 
design and specification complies with Passivhaus Certification criteria is to be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority by a CEPH (Certified European 
Passivhaus) designer. Evidence is to include full PHPP (Passivhaus Planning 
Package) assessment, proposed construction method including specification for all 
external envelope elements, general arrangement plans, sections and elevations, 
key junction details and ventilation design information. The works on site shall not 
commence until the Local Planning Authority have confirmed in writing receipt of 
the aforementioned evidence and their satisfaction with the submitted 
documentation. 
 

36



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

Reason: The sustainability credentials of the proposed building was given 
considerable weight in the decision of the Local Planning Authority to grant 
planning permission for the dwellinghouse and to accord with Policy S1 of the 
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 

9. Evidence of Passivhaus certification received from the Passivhaus Institute in 
Darmstadt shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority by an accredited 
passivhaus assessor within six months of the first occupation of the dwellinghouse 
hereby permitted. 
 
Reason: The sustainability credentials of the proposed building was given 
considerable weight in the decision of the Local Planning Authority to grant 
planning permission for the dwellinghouse and to accord with Policy S1 of the 
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
 

10. Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted, a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan and Habitat Enhancement scheme shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their written approval. This shall 
include timing of the works, details of storage of materials to minimise the extent of 
dust, odour, noise and vibration arising from the construction process. The 
development shall not commence until the Local Planning Authority has given such 
written approval. The  Construction Environmental Management Plan and Habitat 
Enhancement scheme shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved 
details and thereafter maintained as such; 
 
Reasons:- 
 

a) To ensure that all species and sites are protected having regard to the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the Conservation of 
Habitats Regulations 2010 and policies NC1, NC6 And NC7 of the 
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 

b) To comply with policies NC8 and NC9 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan 2007 in relation to Nature Conservation and Bio-diversity 
and to meet the requirements of the NPPF and the NERC Act 2006. 

Reasons for Approval 
 
1. Whilst the proposal is contrary to the provisions of the Development Plan in that it 

would provide a new house outside of the existing settlement boundary, in this 
instance it was considered that full conditional planning permission should be 
granted as: 
 
a) Herefordshire Council has a shortfall in its 5 year housing land supply plus 5%. 
b) The site immediately abuts the settlement boundary of Colwall which is a main 
village and considered to be sustainable. 
c) The design of the building is outstanding in terms of both its architecture and 
sustainability credentials. 
d) The proposal would enhance the Conservation Area. 
e) The proposal would not harm the landscape which hereabouts is designated as 
an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
f) In all other respects the proposal is considered to be acceptable in planning 
terms. 
 
The decision was also made in the context of the National Planning Policy 
Framework which advances a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

37



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

Informatives: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority acted positively and proactively in dealing with this 

development by providing pre-application advice prior to the submission of the 
planning application. 
 
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 
this application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other 
material considerations. Negotiations in respect of minor matters of concern with 
the application (as originally submitted) have resulted in the submission of a 
detailed landscaping scheme.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been 
able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

2. The applicant/developer are advised that a separate Land drainage consent from 
the Lead Local Flood authority (Herefordshire Council – Agents Amey) will be 
required. The relevant contact is Martin.Jackson@amey.co.uk 
 

3. The documents to which this decision relate are: 
 
• Planning Application Form received 30 October 2012. 
• Topographical Survey – Drawing number G 7217/1 received 30 October 2012. 
• Site Location Plan – Drawing number 7022 PL001 Revision 1 (Scale 1:1250) 
received 30 October 2012. 
• Site Plan – Drawing number 7022 PL002 Revision 1 (Scale 1:200) received 30 
October 2012. 
• Floor Plans – Drawing number 7022 PL100 Revision 1 (Scale 1:100) received 30 
October 2012. 
• Elevations – Drawing number 7022 PL600 Revision 1 (Scale 1:100) received 30 
October 2012. 
• Sections – Drawing 7022 PL800 Revision 1 received 30 October 2012. 
• Perspectives – Drawing 7022 PL810 Revision 1 received 30 October 2012. 
• Timber Cladding Details – Drawing number 7022 PL910 received 30 October 2012. 
• Bridge Details – Drawing number 7022 PL900 Revision 1 received 30 October 2012. 
• Design & Access Statement (October 2012) received 30 October 2012. 
• Aboricultural Implications Assessment received 30th October 2012. 
• Landscaping Proposals – Drawing number CHC 001 (Scale 1:200) 
received 10 January 2013. 

 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 
  
APPLICATION NO:  N/123067/F   
 
SITE ADDRESS:  LAND AT THE COACH HOUSE, OLD CHURCH ROAD, COLWALL, MALVERN, 
HEREFORDSHIRE 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 
 
 

39



40



BARN LANE

D
ra

in

P
o

n
d

COWL

G
P

BA
L

M
ATH

ON R
OAD

SPRING CLOSE

MEADOW W
ALK

CLO
SE

O
A

K
 D

R
IV

E

HIL
L VIE

W CLOSE

P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

1
2

8
.4

m

1
3

3
.2

m

P

R
E
D

L
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

E
l

C
o

tt

STONE DRIVE

O
L
D

 C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
O

A
D

PEDLINGHAM

P
a
th

P
a
th

 (
u
m

)

1
3

0
.9

m

P
a
th

Path (u
m)

1
2

2
.5

m

D
ra

in

D
ra

in
D

ra
in

P
o
n

d F
a
rm

2
2

2
4

A
ld

e
rl

e
y

P
in

e
 L

o
d

g
e

T
h

e
 C

o
w

lb
a
rn

T
h

e
 L

o
n

g
b

a
rn

T
a
n

ta
la

1
4

7

7

In

R
o

se

S
u

n
d

Kindons

O
a
k
d

e
n

2

1

1

8

H
o

u
se

Q
u

e
e
n

sw
o

o
d

21

S
h

ir
e
s

B
a
rn

C
o

tt
a
g

e

A
sh

d
o

w
n

T
h

e

H
o

ll
ie

s

B
u
tt

o
n
s

T
h

e

R
o

o
st

4

2

C
h

e
ck

e
tt

s

New Court

H
a
d

le
y

G
re

y
 H

o
u

se

G
o

u
ld

in
g

s

1

K
is

d
o

n

9

6

1

5

A
rn

si
d

e

Ja
ln

a

W
h

it
e
g

a
te

s

H
e
d

g
e
b

a
n

k

B
u

rg
h

le
y

G
ro

v
e
se

n
d

H
o

u
se

C
h

e
rr

y

W
in

te
rs

lo
w

S
ta

m
p

s

L
o

d
g

e

W
e
st

 C
o

v
e

Cotta
ge

H
o

u
se

R
h

e
a

W

T
h

e
C

o
tt

a
g

e

W

1
1

8

B
ra

ck
e
n

fo
rd

H
a
z
e
l 

B
a
n

k

T
re

e
to

p
s

B
o

w
e
rf

o
rd

4

Littl
e

L
it

tl
e

L
it

tl
e

O
a
k
 H

o
u

se

L
o

d
g

e

T
h

e
 C

o
a
ch

 H
o

u
se

G
ro

v
e
se

n
d

G
y
le

n

23

G
ro

v
e
se

n
d

T
h

e

P
a
v
il

io
n

P
a
v
il

io
n

Matching

Queenswood

M
e
a
d

o
w

cr
o

ft

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 L

o
d
g
e

C
ro

ft

B
u

rl
e
ig

h

T
h

e
 H

o
m

e
st

e
a
d

F
a
ir

fi
e
ld

B
a
y

T
h

e

1
2

D
o

rt
o

n
s

S
tr

o
u

dR
o

s

1
5

T
h

e
 G

a
b

le
s

4

Chanctonbury

A
p

p
le

 C
ro

ss

Wimbledon

H
o

u
se

A
cr

e
fi

e
ld

D
l

f
d

S
h

e
rw

o
o

d

5

R
e
d

la
n

d

R
in

n
e
e
n

R
a
v
e
lo

e

F
le

tc
h

e
rs

O
y
st

e
r 

C
lo

se

P
a
d

d
o

ck
 E

n
d

O
a
k
d

e
n

e

L
o

d
g

e

T
h

e
 W

a
y

C
o

p
p

e
rk

in
s

F
ie

ld

S
h

e
ls

le
y

A
N

N
E

X
 1

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

S
ite

C
ol

lw
al

l S
et

tle
m

en
t B

ou
nd

ar
y

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 S

it
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o

 S
et

tl
em

en
t 

B
o

u
n

d
ar

y

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

s 
(2

01
2)

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
(1

00
02

41
68

)
©

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
/o

r 
da

ta
ba

se
 r

ig
ht

 2
01

2.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 
©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 L

an
dm

ar
k 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

G
ro

up
 L

td
 (

20
12

)

S
ca

le
 1

:2
50

0

T
h

e 
C

o
ac

h
 H

o
u

se
, C

o
lw

al
l

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

O
 B

ox
 2

30
B

lu
es

ch
oo

l H
ou

se
H

er
ef

or
d

H
R

1 
2Z

B

T
el

:  
   

01
43

2 
26

00
00

F
ax

:  
  0

14
32

 2
61

97
0
 

41



42



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

   

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 30 JANUARY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

S122604/O - OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR 35 UNIT HOUSING 
SCHEME WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS AT LAND REAR OF 
WHITE HOUSE DRIVE, KINGSTONE, HEREFORD.  
 
For: Bayhill Property Developments Ltd per Quattro Design 
Architects Ltd, Imperial Chambers, Longsmith Street, 
Gloucester, Gloucestershire, GL1 2HT 
 

WEBSITE 
LINK: 

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/58286.aspx?ID=122604&NoSearch=True 
 

 
Date Received: 19 September 2012 Ward: Valletts Grid Ref: 342335,235900 
Expiry Date: 10 January 2013 
Local Member: Councillor JF Knipe  
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The site comprises 1.18 hectares of undeveloped agricultural land immediately adjoining the 

western side of White House Drive from which access is proposed to be gained and 
immediately north of residential development along the southern side of the gently undulating 
site.  There are no trees on the site and the only vegetation is well maintained hedgerows on 
the north western boundary of the site and along the north western boundary of the site.  

 
1.2    The site lies adjacent to the settlement boundary which is provided by the rear garden and 

western boundary of properties in White House Drive and by the northern boundary of Green 
Lane. Therefore, the site falls within open countryside in planning policy terms. 

 
 This is an outline planning application that is seeking to establish the principle of erecting 35 

dwellings. The means of access, siting and layout is to be determined as part of this 
submission. In the event that planning permission was granted a further application would 
need to include details relating to external appearance and landscaping. 

 
1.3    23 dwellings will provide private housing and the remaining 12 dwellings will provide social 

housing. The private housing will comprise 7 no., 2 bedroom dwellings, 6 no. 3 bedroom 
dwellings of two different house types and 10 no., 4 bedroom houses again comprising two 
house types.  The affordable housing will comprise a two storey block of building providing 4 
no. 1 bedroom flats, 6 no. 2 bedroom houses, 1 no. 3 bedroom dwelling and a single 4 
bedroom dwelling. The dwellings will be accessed off the north western end of White House 
Drive between two dwellings 17 metres apart.  Four detached dwellings will continue the line 
of detached dwellings on White House Drive before the access road turns at 90 degrees and 
leads south westwards and slightly down slope towards properties and private allotments in 
Green Lane. Detached and semi-detached properties will be erected along both sides of the 
new access road.  The affordable housing will be provided on the south western area of the 

AGENDA ITEM 8

43



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

inverted ‘L’ shaped site. An unequipped open space area is proposed on the eastern boundary 
of the site.  

 
1.4     The traffic leaving the proposal site will travel south eastwards to the junction with Church 

Road (C1221), which is the main thoroughfare in this part of Kingstone.  It joins the B4349 
road to the north and the B4348 road to the south, adjoining the Bull Ring public house. 

    
1.5      A Draft Heads of Terms Agreement was submitted with the application. This has been 

developed further and has been the subject of consultation with the Parish Council. 
 
1.6      The application was the subject of pre-application discussion at a public meeting early in 2012. 
 
1.7      This application was accompanied by a Planning Statement, Design and Access Statement, 

Landscape and Visual Statement, Waste Minimisation Statement, Transport Statement, Flood 
Risk Assessment and Biodiversity Appraisal. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 National Planning Policy Framework 
 
     The following sections are of particular reference: 
 
            Introduction  - Achieving sustainable development 
                      Section 6      -   Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
                      Section 7      -   Requiring Good Design 
                      Section 8      -   Promoting healthy communities 
                      Section 11    -   Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
     
2.2    Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development Requirements 
S3 - Housing 
S6 - Transport 
S7 - Natural and Historic Heritage 
S8 - Recreation, Sport and Tourism 
S11 - Community Facilities and Services 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR4 - Environment 
DR5 - Planning Obligations 
DR7 - Flood Risk 
H7 - Housing in the Countryside Outside Settlements 
H9 - Affordable Housing 
H10 - Rural Exception Housing 
H13 - Sustainable Residential Design 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car Parking 
H19 - Open Space Requirements 
LA2 - Landscape Character 
LA3 - Setting of Settlements 

44



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3     Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
               Landscape Character assessment 
                Planning Obligations 
                   Design 
                   Biodiversity and Development 
 
2.4     Other Guidance 
 
                   Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
                   Annual Monitoring Report 
                   Urban Fringe Sensitivity Analysis 
 
2.5 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Councils website by using the following link:- 
 
            http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3.       Planning History 
 
3.1 None identified 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
 Statutory Consultees 
 
4.1 Welsh Water 
 

Welsh Water state that the proposed development would overload the existing Water 
Treatment Works. However, improvements are planned for completion by 1st April 2015 

 
Welsh Water offer a condition to safeguard the security of service to customers and the 
protection of the environment 

 
‘No buildings on the application site shall be brought into beneficial use earlier than 1st April 
2015, unless the upgrading of the Waste Water Treatment Works, into which the development 
shall drain, has been completed and written confirmation of this has been issued by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To prevent overloading of the Waste Water Treatment works and pollution of the 
environment‘. 

 

LA6 - Landscaping Schemes 
NC1 - Biodiversity and Development 
NC8 - Habitat Creation, Restoration and Enhancement 
T6 - Walking 
T7 - Cycling 
T8 - Road Hierarchy 
T11 - Parking Provision 
RST4 - Standards for Outdoor Playing and Public Open Space 
W11 - Development and Waste implications 
CF2 - Foul drainage 

45



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

Welsh Water also recommend that in the event of planning permission being granted standard  
conditions are attached to the planning permission in respect of the separation of foul water 
and surface water discharges 

 
Welsh Water also state that new legislation makes it mandatory for developers to obtain an 
adoption agreement, in relation to any connection to the public sewerage system. 

 
As regards Water Supply, this can be made available; however the developer may be required 
to contribute under Sections 40-41 of the Water Industry Act 1991, towards the provision of 
new off-site and/or on-site water mains and associated infrastructure. 

 
4.2       Environment Agency has no objections as the site is within Flood Zone 1, the Low Risk Zone. 

The Environment Agency recommends seeking advice of Council’s Land Drainage team. 
 

Internal Council Advice 
 
4.3    Transportation Manager has no objections subject to appropriate conditions 
 
4.4    Conservation Manager (Landscape): The landscape character type is principal settled 

farmlands.  The Landscape and Visual Assessment (LVA) follows recommended standards. It 
demonstrates that the landscape character has informed the design process. The Landscape 
Officer confirms that apart from well maintained field hedgerows, there are no obvious 
landscape features. The proposal will also retain the character and integrity of Kingstone, 
there will be a change in view points these will not though necessarily be negative ones.   

 
4.5      Conservation Manager (Ecology): No objections are raised. There are opportunities for habitat 

protection and enhancement which would need to be the subject of a submitted scheme prior 
to commencement of works on the site. 

 
4.6       Housing Manager: Support. Tenure split is acceptable, being social rent. The unit sizes meet 

the requirements of Liifetime Homes. The affordable units will need to be built to the minimum 
code for Sustainable Homes level 3 

 
4.7    Parks and Countryside Manager states that the contributions  towards play space for both 

young and older children is needed  given that no provision is made on the site. It is though 
acknowledged that Kingstone is well served with existing facilities. Nevertheless, given Policy 
H19 of UDP requires provision for play space for sites of between 30 to 60 dwellings. 

 
4.8      Land Drainage Officer states that the Flood Risk Assessment is comprehensive and all 

aspects of flooding and drainage have been considered for this stage. 
 
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Kingstone Parish Council state:  Following housing development proposals of 30 homes as an 

extension to White House Drive and 150 houses opposite Kingstone Surgery the Parish 
Council organised an open meeting on 30 May 2012. 

 
 94 residents attended and 12 sent email comments. 
  
 A summary of the comments specific to White House Drive were: 
 

a)  84% were against the 30 houses (now 35 houses) 
b)   majority thought this proposal too large and that Kingstone should have no more 60 

houses built with the 20 year scale of the Local Development Plan 
c)   affordable houses should not be more than 25% (preferably less) of any development to 

bring Kingstone currently at 30%, in line with the County average of 15% 

46



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

d)  these proposals far exceed the local housing requirement identified in the last housing 
survey of 7 affordable homes 

e)  there is no local employment so these homes will just add commuters to the daily Belmont 
Road traffic jam twice a day 

f)   there is no gain to the village whatsoever from this proposal 
g)   there is general concern about utility services coping with this increase in particular the 

sewage system is known to be overloaded. It has been stated that the utility infrastructure 
would not cope with further housing particularly as further housing planned for Madley will 
use this overloaded structure 

h)   is White House Drive and the C1221 road junction suitable for the large increase in traffic?  
 
 About 30 residents attended the last Parish Council meeting on the 14 November and again 

re-iterated their opposition to this housing proposal. There was a specific complaint that one of 
the new houses was shown very close to the garden of 21 Green Lane. This could be avoided 
by realigning the houses so that the back gardens abutted the existing property. 

 
 The Parish Council therefore recommends that this application be rejected.  
 
5.2     69 letters of objection have been received. In summary the points raised are as follows: 
 

- Greenfield site, brown field sites should be developed first. Contrary to Policies S3, H13 
and HBA9 of UDP. 

- Loss of valuable open space. Village needs green heart 
- Village not a town 
- Loss of privacy 
- Loss of light  
- Loss of outlook 
- Nearby house very wide and as tall. 
- Light pollution from parking area 
- Three –storey house dominates our property 
- Understand covenant on land restricting development 
- Enough affordable housing 
- No provision for elderly i.e. bungalows 
- At public meeting led to believe would be 15 dwellings 
- Discrepancy in stated parking spaces is it 63 or 72? 
- Additional traffic, 70 %  
- Junction onto Church Road has vey poor visibility particularly to right. Exacerbated by no 

footpaths 
- Increase traffic on Whitehouse Drive a danger to this existing cul-de sac, particularly to 

children 
- Poor junctions onto B4348 road at Dews Corner and onto Allensmore/Peterchurch 

junction 
- Belmont Road cannot take any additional traffic. South of city experiencing major hold ups 

now, deterring people moving to Kingstone and beyond (empty properties in village) 
- Not the employment as stated, by applicant, in village. New residents will inevitably 

commute 
- Question of capacity of school and surgery to take additional population.  
- Land acts as natural drain now, won’t when covered over. 
- Question capacity of sewage works also used by Madley, which has 19 dwellings 

approved recently at Madley. Sewerage is  old and failing 
- Understood water brought from Wormelow to lagoon to serve village 
- Hedgerow will not screen site 
- Will devalue properties 
- More policing required. Who pays? 
- Definition of affordable housing? 
- No Section 106 money going to community.  

47



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

- Are these sweeteners for further development? 
- Development to rear of Hawthorn Rise refused by Council similar as for this site. 
- See copy of letter from Andrew Mitchell MP, self-explanatory 
- Affordable houses will make private dwellings difficult to sell. 
 

5.3 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 
link:- 

 www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/searchplanningapplications.aspx 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
 www.herefordshire.gov.uk/community_and_living/consumer_advice/41840.asp 
 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The key considerstions in the determination of this application are as follows: 
 
                     1)  The Principle of the Development 
                     2)  The NPPF and Housing Land Supply 
                     3)  Landscape Impact 
                     4)  Layout and Design 
                     5)  Highways Matters 
                     6)  Infrastructure 
                     7)  Other Matters 
                     8)  Conclusion 
 
           The Principle of Development 
 
6.2      The site falls outside of the settlement boundary for Kingstone as defined by the Herefordshire 

Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and therefore falls within open countryside. New residential 
develoment in the countryside can be permitted where it satisfies one of the exceptions within 
UDP Policy H7 such as for a dwelling for a key worker or possibly entails the conversion of a 
suitable rural building. Policy H10 does allow for exceptional affordable development where it 
adjoins an existing settlement boundary, such as in this instance.  However, it is necessary to 
consider whether or not there are any other material planning considerations.  

 
6.3     The Core Strategy is not sufficiently advanced to be given due weight in the consideration of 

this application, in any case there are are no specific policies or proposals that relate to this 
particulatr site. The National Planning Policy Framewoerk (NPPF) came into force in March 
2012. Paragraph 215 of the NPPF clarifies that due weight can still be given to the relevant 
UDP policies  for a period of 12 months from the date of adoption of the NPPF providing those 
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF. 

 
          The NPPF and Housing Land Supply 
 
6.4     At the heart of the NPPF is a general presumption  in favour of sustainable development and 

applications for housing should be considered in this context. The NPPF requires that local 
planning authorities should identify a rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land to 
ensure choice and competition in the market. Additionally, the NPPF requires an additional 
buffer of 5% (increased to 20% if a planning authority has persistently under delivered housing 
land). On the basis of the evidence available to date, it is considered the requirement for a 5% 
buffer is applicable to Herefordshire. 

 
6.5  Earlier this year, the Council published its Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) which monitors 

housing land availability. Based on the AMR figures, the Council currently has a shortfall of 
216 units which equates to a 4.6 year supply. This shortfall also does not account for the 
requirement to maintain the additional 5% buffer which would amount to a further 140 units.  

48



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

The data collection for the 2011/2012 period has commenced and this will provide a more up 
to date land supply position but it is not anticipated that the shortfall will have decreased. 

 
6.6  Paragraph 49 of the NPPF stipulates that relevant policies concerning the supply of housing 

land should not be regarded as up to date if a five year land supply cannot be demonstrated. 
In view of this, there is a requirement to release further land for housing that is deliverable 
within the next five years and is sustainable. There remains a requirement for the development 
to accord with other relevant UDP policies and NPPF guidance but in terms of the principle, if 
the development is acceptable in all other respects, the conflict with UDP Policy H7 is not a 
reason for refusal of the application that could be sustained.  

 
6.7  This position was also endorsed by the Council's Cabinet on 12 July 2012. The agreed 

process for considering proposals of this nature being that with larger developments, the focus 
should be on sites that have been identified as having low or minor constraints in the Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment unless it can be demonstrated that the location is 
sustainable and appropriate for additional housing development and the environmental and 
other impacts of the development are acceptable. 

 
Landscape Impact 

 
6.8   The site has no statutory landscape designation but is classified as Principal Settled 

Farmlands in the Council’s adopted Landscape Character Assessment Supplementary 
Planning Document. This roughly triangular area of land does not have notable landscape 
features, the main contribution being the existing well maintained hedgerows. The proposals 
for additional boundary planting, street trees and shrub planting will provide a well integrated 
development layout as confirmed by the Conservation Manager (Landscape) 

 
6.9     The major impact will continue to be the large extent of post Second World War housing to the 

east and south of the proposal site. The major impact will be given the topography of the site 
this backdrop of modern houses. The landscape appraisal confirms that from distant views 
particularly from the west and north west the impact of the new development is mitigated by 
established trees around the playing field to the north and by intervening buildings. This is a 
matter though that will need to be the subject of a reserved matters application. Therefore, it is 
not considered that the proposal will have an adverse impact in the landscape and therefore 
the proposal accords with Policy LA2 of UDP. 

 
Layout and Design 

 
6.10  The proposal provides a housing scheme with a mixture of housing types, detached semi-

detached, a terrace together with a building providing flats on two floors. The layout will, it is 
considered, integrate well with the existing adjoining White House Drive by providing a 
continuation along the northern boundary of the site. These dwellings will utilise a backdrop of 
trees and hedgerows. The private dwellings on the northern end of the site are reasonably well 
spaced and have satisfactory areas of private garden. There is considered to be sufficient 
spacing between properties which adjoin White House Drive such that acceptable levels of 
privacy are maintained in accordance with Policies DR1 and SH13 of UDP.  

 
6.11   Plots 10 and 11 which will adjoin private allotments and the rear boundaries of properties in 

Green Lane will not have an adverse impact on the amenity of adjoining residents. However, 
plot 17 which is 4 bedroom dwelling over 8 metres in height is in the south western most 
dwelling close to a boundary with a property in Green Lane. This dwelling type has been 
swapped for one which is not as tall or wide and on this basis it is considered the submitted 
layout can be supported.  

 
6.12   The layout is not regimental and with the proposed public open space on the eastern side of 

the development adjoining properties in White House Drive, the new dwellings will be laid out 

49



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

such that privacy between new properties and existing properties around the site is 
maintained.  

 
Highways Matters 

 
6.13  This is considered to be one of the major issues raised in objections received from local 

residents and the Parish Council.  The primary issue is considered to relate to the junction of 
White House Drive and Church Road, which is a class III road. It is considered that given the 
visibility achievable and the configuration of the classified road, which slows traffic 
approaching from the right or south west, the available visibility in both directions is 
satisfactory. Reference has also been made to additional traffic joining the two class II roads to 
the north and south of Church Road and to increasing traffic in general on the Belmont Road. 
It is considered that the increased movement of traffic on local roads albeit on class II roads is 
not a factor that outweighs the primary objectives of national government advice of providing 
sufficient numbers of sustainable developments across the country. 

 
6.14   A discrepancy has been highlighted in some representations received relating to the number 

of parking spaces cited in the Transport Statement and the number identified in the application 
form and submitted plans. This has come about primarily as the higher figure includes garage 
spaces and the lower one includes only spaces around the site. The provision of integral 
garage spaces will together with the provision of visitors’ spaces bring the level of parking, as 
stated on the application form to 74 spaces which includes 3 visitors spaces and an average 
of just over 2 spaces per dwelling which is considered to be acceptable and therefore 
accordance with Policy DR3 of UDP. This parking provision is also considered to be 
acceptable by the Traffic Manager. 

 
6.15   The Traffic Manager is seeking slight re-alignments to the new road together with give way 

signage and appropriate lighting at the junction of Church Road and White House Drive; these 
are matters that can be addressed by a Section 38 Agreement with the Highway Authority and 
developer. 

 
Infrastructure 

 
6.16    Welsh Water has confirmed that there is not the capacity for these additional dwellings until 

2015. It is a matter that has also been referred to in representations received from the Parish 
Council and local residents. However, Welsh Water state that improvement works which are 
on going will make it possible after April 2015 for the developer to utilise these sewage works. 
There would also be an option for the developer to contribute towards funding the works 
needed. A Grampian style planning condition will need to be attached to any planning 
permission granted. Therefore, although Welsh Water confirm that works are required to 
enable the development to proceed, they have not objected and accordingly this proposal 
accords with Policy DR4  

 
Other matters 

 
Housing mix 

 
6.17    Although, this has not been the subject of representations received, it is considered that the 

mix and style of dwellings submitted for the general housing market is acceptable as regards 
the mix of four bed units and smaller three and two bedroom units.  

 
6.18   Twelve units will be affordable dwellings. Nine will be made available for social rent and three 

for intermediate tenure occupation.  The Strategic Housing Officer supports the number and 
tenure of the affordable units, four of which are one bedroom flats. Representations have been 
received relating to a perceived over provision of affordable housing. However, the provision 
of such housing needs to be placed in the context of other settlements that have not brought 

50



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

affordable housing. Issues of devaluing existing housing stock by providing affordable 
provision do not provide a justified or sustainable planning policy objection for not providing 
such development which is a requirement of not only UDP policy but also in the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
Section 106 Agreement 

 
6.19    A Section 106 Heads of terms is appended to this report.  This provides for contributions 

towards the provision of new and enhanced community infrastructure in line with the adopted 
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document. This includes monies towards 
education, new highway and sustainable transport, enhancement of existing off site play 
facilities, library contribution and improvements to waste and recycling provision. 

 
Flood Risk 

 
6.20     Both the Environment Agency and the Council’s Land Drainage Officer confirm that the site is 

not at risk of flooding, which is an issue raised in representations received. Therefore, the site 
is capable of development in accordance with Policy DR7 of UDP. 

 
Biodiversity 

 
6.21    The proposal site which is used for grazing is not one rich in biodiversity as confirmed by the 

Planning Ecologist. There are though opportunities for habitat enhancement with additional 
hedgerow and tree planting on the western boundary of the site. These are matters though 
that can be addressed by attaching a planning condition requiring details of habitat protection 
and enhancement before any works commence on site. Therefore, the proposal accords with 
Policies NC1 and NC4 of UDP.  

 
Play Facilities 

 
6.22   The scheme whilst not providing an equipped play area does provide an open space area. 

This is though compensated for by contributions within the remit of the Draft Heads of Terms 
towards on going projects in Kingstone cited by the Parks/Countryside Manager. It is on this 
basis that the proposal can be supported and accord with Policy H19 of UDP.  

            
Other matters raised: 

 
6.23   Reference has been made to a refusal of planning permission for a site at Hawthorn Rise at 

Peterchurch. This reference is made on the basis of comparability. The site proposal for 
development to the north of Hawthorn Rise utilising an existing estate road was refused on the 
proximity of the access road to bungalows either side of it .This site is not comparable to the 
one the subject of this application given the dwellings either side of the road, in this instance 
are at a minimum of 17 metres apart. Reference is also made to a green belt development in 
Sutton Coalfield. There is no green belt in Herefordshire and this development is sustainable. 

 
         Conclusion 
 
6.24 Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states that: 
  

- a presumption in favour of sustainable development should be seen as a golden thread 
running though both plan making and decision-taking. In terms of the latter, this means  

-  approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; and 
-  where a development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-date, permission 

should be granted unless:  

51



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

-   Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole; or - Specific policies 
in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted."  

 
6.25 It has already been established that the UDP housing supply figures are not up to date due to 

the deficit in housing land supply. The development offers benefits in terms of the delivery of 
additional housing including twelve affordable units and it is accepted that the development is 
sustainable in terms of location of the site and accessibility by non car based transport modes, 
the revised layout and design and the commitment to construct to a high sustainability 
standard. This is not a brownfield site but the site will also not have an adverse impact in the 
landscape and although this is a reserved matter, there are opportunities further tree and 
hedgerow planting and opportunities for biodiversity enhancement. 

 
6.26     The development can be served by a means of access that will not have an adverse impact on 

highway safety. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That subject to completion of a Section 106 planning obligation in accordance with the draft 
Heads of Terms annexed to the report the officers named in the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers  be authorised to grant outline planning permission subject to conditions noted in the 
report and subject to any further conditions considered necessary by officers: 
 
1. A02 Time limit for submission of reserved matters (outline permission) 

 
2. A03 Time limit for commencement (outline permission) 

 
3. A04 Approval of reserved matters 

 
4. A05 Plans and particulars of reserved matters 

 
5. B01 Development in accordance with the approved plans 

 
6. F08 No conversion of garage to habitable accommodation 

 
7. F16 No new windows in specified elevation 

 
8. H03 Visibility splays 

 
9. H06 Vehicular access construction 

 
10. H11 Parking - estate development (more than one house) 

 
11. H19 On site roads - phasing 

 
12. H20 Road completion in 2 years 

 
13. H21 Wheel washing 

 
14. H27 Parking for site operatives 

 
15. H29 Secure covered cycle parking provision 

 
16. H30 Travel plans 

 
 

52



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

17. H17 Junction improvement/off site works 
 

18. K4 Nature Conservation - Implementation 
 

19. No buildings on the application site shall be brought into beneficial use earlier than 
1st April 2015, unless the upgrading of the Waste Water Treatment Works, into 
which the development shall drain, has been completed and written confirmation of 
this has been issued by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent overloading of the Waste Water Treatment works and pollution 
of the environment. 
 

20. L01 Foul/surface water drainage 
 

21. L02 No surface water to connect to public system 
 

22. L03 No drainage run-off to public system 
 

23. L04 Comprehensive & Integratred draining of site 
 

Reason for Approval  
 
1. In reaching the decision to grant planning permission, regard has been had to the 

relevant policies in the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. The local planning authority was also mindful of other 
supplementary planning guidance 
 
The National Planning policy framework requires the council to maintain a 5 year 
supply of deliverable housing land and where this requirement is not being met, the 
relevant plan policies concerning the supply of housing land should not be 
regarded as up to date. As such the conflict with UDP Policy H7 is not, in itself, a 
reason for refusal. 
 
The development offers the benefits in terms of the additional housing within the 
next five years including twelve affordable dwellings and the development is 
sustainable in terms of the location of the site and accessibility by non-car modes 
of transport. The amended plan provides an improved relationship to the existing 
development. The development will not have an adverse impact in the wider 
landscape and there are opportunities to ameliorate the impact of the development 
by further tree and hedgerow planting as well as measures for improving 
biodiversity around the site.The need to deliver additional housing land and the 
requirement to consider new residential development in the context of a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development along with the benefits of the 
development will outweigh the conflict with Policy H7 , in this instance . The 
development is considered to comply with other relevant Policies in the UDP and is 
therefore considered acceptable. 
 

Informatives: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other 
material considerations. Negotiations in respect of matters of concern with the 
application (as originally submitted) have resulted in amendments to the proposal.  
As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning 
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 

53



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

Framework.  
 

2. N02 Section 106 Obligation 
 

3. HN01 Mud on highway 
 

4. HN04 Private apparatus within highway 
 

5. HN05 Works within the highway 
 

6. HN08 Section 38 Agreement & Drainage details 
 

7. HN10 No drainage to discharge to highway 
 

8. HN17 Design of street lighting for Section 278 
 

9. HN24 Drainage other than via highway system 
 

 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

54



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

DRAFT HEADS OF TERMS 
 

PROPOSED PLANNING OBLIGATION AGREEMENT 
Section 106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 
 
This Heads of Terms has been assessed against the adopted Supplementary Planning 
Document on Planning Obligations dated 1st April 2008.  All contributions in respect of the 
residential development are assessed against open market units only. 

 
Outline planning application S122604/O 

 
Outline application for the erection of 35 dwellings (23 x open market dwellings and 12 x 
affordable dwellings) on land to the rear of White House Drive, Kingstone, Hereford. 
 

1. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council 

the sum of £87,893.00 (breakdown detailed in the table below) to provide enhanced 

educational infrastructure at South Hereford City Early Years, Kingstone and 

Thruxton Primary School and South Wye Youth Service with 1% allocated for 

Special Education Needs (SEN). No secondary school contribution is required as 

capacity presently exits in all year groups.  The sum shall be paid on or before the 

commencement of the development (or in accordance with a phasing strategy to be 

agreed) and may be pooled with other contributions if appropriate.  

Pre-School £6,772.00 
Primary £55.797.00 
Post 16 £2,001.00 
Youth £19,059.00 
SEN £4,264.00 
Total £87,893.00 

 

2. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council the 

sum of £48,821.00 to provide new highway and sustainable transport infrastructure to 

serve the development. The sum shall be paid on or before the commencement of the 

development (or in accordance with a phasing strategy to be agreed) and may be pooled 

with other contributions as appropriate.  

 

3. The monies shall be used by Herefordshire Council at its option for any or all of the 

following purposes: 

3.1. Localised sustainable transport infrastructure to enhance the accessibility of the site 

for non car based modes of transport including but not limited to: 

a) Creation of cycle link between Kingstone and Madley via the Madley Industrial 

55



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

Estate 

b) New pedestrian and cyclist crossing facilities 

c) Bus passenger waiting facilities in Kingstone specifically along the C1221 

3.2. Enhancement in the usability of the localised public right of way network 

3.3. Provision of park and share and park and cycle facilities 

 

4. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council 

the sum of £38,785 for the provision of new or the enhancement of existing play 

facilities in the locality and £15,684 for the provision of new or the enhancement of 

existing sport facilities in the county (contribution based around the requirements of 

saved policies H19 and RST4 of the UDP and Sport England Sports Facilities 

Calculator). The sum shall be paid on or before the commencement of the 

development (or in accordance with a phasing strategy to be agreed) and may be 

pooled with other contributions as appropriate. 

 
5. The money shall be used by Herefordshire Council for priorities identified in the 

Indoor Sports Facilities Strategy, the emerging Play Facilities Strategy and emerging 

Playing Pitch Strategy. 

 
6. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council 

the sum of £4,620 towards the provision of new and enhanced of existing library 

facilities in Peterchurch.  The sum shall be paid on or before the commencement of 

the development (or in accordance with a phasing strategy to be agreed) and may 

be pooled with other contributions if appropriate. 

 
7. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council 

the sum of £2,760 towards the provision of new or the enhancement of existing 

waste and recycling facilities to serve the development and waste reduction 

strategies within the locality and city. 

8. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council that twelve (12) of the 

residential units shall be “Affordable Housing” which meets the criteria set out in 

policy H9 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning 

Policy Framework or any statutory replacement of those criteria and that policy 

including the Supplementary Planning Document on Planning Obligations.  

9. Of those Affordable Housing units, nine (9) shall be made available for social rent 

and three (3) being available for intermediate tenure occupation.  For the avoidance 

56



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

of doubt, the term intermediate tenure shall not include equity loans or affordable 

rent. 

10. All the affordable housing units shall be completed and made available for 

occupation prior to the occupation of no more than 50% of the general market 

housing or in accordance with a phasing programme to be agreed in writing with 

Herefordshire Council. 

11. The Affordable Housing Units must at all times be let and managed or co-owned in 

accordance with the guidance issued by the Homes and Communities Agency (or 

any successor agency) from time to time with the intention that the Affordable 

Housing Units shall at all times be used for the purposes of providing Affordable 

Housing to persons who are eligible in accordance with the allocation policies of the 

Registered Social Landlord; and satisfy the following requirements:-: 

11.1. registered with Home Point at the time the Affordable Housing Unit becomes 

available for residential occupation; and 

11.2. satisfy the requirements of paragraphs 12 & 13 of this schedule 

12. The Affordable Housing Units must be advertised through Home Point and allocated 

in accordance with the Herefordshire Allocation Policy for occupation as a sole 

residence to a person or persons one of whom has:- 

12.1. a local connection with the parish of Kingstone; 

12.2. in the event of there being no person having a local connection to the parish of 

Kingstone, a person with a local connection with the parishes of Madley, 

Clehonger, Abbey Dore, Thruxston, Treville, Allensmore and Eaton Bishop 

12.3. in the event of there being no person with a local connection to any of the 

above parishes, any other person ordinarily resident within the administrative 

area of the Council who is eligible under the allocation policies of the 

Registered Social Landlord if the Registered Social Landlord can demonstrate 

to the Council that after 28 working days of any of the Affordable Housing 

Units becoming available for letting the Registered Social Landlord having 

made all reasonable efforts through the use of Home Point have found no 

suitable candidate under sub-paragraph 12.1 or 12.2 above. 

13. For the purposes of sub-paragraph 12.1 or 12.2 of this schedule ‘local connection’ 

means having a connection to one of the parishes specified above because that 

person: 

57



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

13.1. is or in the past was normally resident there; or 

13.2. is employed there; or 

13.3. has a family association there; or 

13.4. a proven need to give support to or receive support from family members; or 

13.5. because of special circumstances;  

 

14. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to construct the Affordable 

Housing Units to the Homes and Communities Agency ‘Design and Quality 

Standards 2007’ (or to such subsequent design and quality standards of the Homes 

and Communities Agency as are current at the date of construction) and to Joseph 

Rowntree Foundation ’Lifetime Homes’ standards. Independent certification shall be 

provided prior to the commencement of the development and following occupation 

of the last dwelling confirming compliance with the required standard. 

15. In the event that Herefordshire Council does not for any reason use the sums in 

paragraphs 1, 2, 4, 6 and 7 above, for the purposes specified in the agreement 

within 10 years of the date of this agreement, the Council shall repay to the 

developer the said sum or such part thereof, which has not been used by 

Herefordshire Council. 

16. The sums referred to in paragraphs 1, 2, 4, 6 and 7 above shall be linked to an 

appropriate index or indices selected by the Council with the intention that such 

sums will be adjusted according to any percentage increase in prices occurring 

between the date of the Section 106 Agreement and the date the sums are paid to 

the Council. 

17. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay a surcharge of 2% of 

the total sum detailed in this Heads of Terms, as a contribution towards the cost of 

monitoring and enforcing the Section 106 Agreement. The sum shall be paid on or 

before the commencement of the development.  

18. The developer shall pay to the Council on or before the completion of the    

Agreement, the reasonable legal costs incurred by Herefordshire Council in 

connection with the preparation and completion of the Agreement. 

20 November 2012 

58



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Andrew Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

 
 

 
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  
APPLICATION NO:  S/122604/O   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  LAND REAR OF WHITE HOUSE DRIVE, KINGSTONE, HEREFORD 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

59



60


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 APPEALS
	7 N123067/F - LAND AT THE COACH HOUSE, OLD CHURCH ROAD, COLWALL, MALVERN
	Old Coach House Colwall - Settlement Boundary 2500

	8 S122604/O - LAND REAR OF WHITE HOUSE DRIVE, KINGSTONE, HEREFORD

